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DEDICATION

We proudly dedicate our County annual report this year to former Sullivan County
Commissioner, Rudolf “Rudy” Adler. As the Executive Branch of the County, the
duties of the County Commissioner are mandated by NH State RSA’s and normally seen
as a part time position, but through the perseverance of Rudy, the role of County
Commissioner with Sullivan County was brought into a new age.

Rudy brought to the County his experiences he gathered throughout his career in quality
control and engineering, as a college instructor and as a proprietor of a recreational
camping park. His education included a Bachelors of Science, Business Management
Rutgers University, MBA course of study, University of Connecticut. Rudy held a four
year term with the Lempster Select Board and was a member of their Planning Board /
Trustees of Trust Funds, as well as a member of the NH House of Representatives for

- two years. He was on the Board of Directors and former President and Treasurer of the

Sullivan County United Way, a member of the Military Affiliate Radic System (MARS)
and former Director of Northern New England, the Amateur Radio Emergency Service
(ARES) and Coordinator for Sullivan County. He was a Chairman of the NHAC
Commissioners Council, a member of the NHAC Executive Committee and Chair of the
NHAC Tax Equity Committee. He was on the Board of Directors of the Western
Regional Development Corporation and was a county government representative to the
Transportation Committee of Governors Council on Disabilities.

As Commissioner, while holding the offices of Vice Chair followed by Chair, Rudy and
his continuants strove to bring Sullivan County out of a 1.2 million-dollar budget shortfall,
inherited from the former Board, and in doing so brought to the forefront a major problem
he saw in the failure of the state and federal government to fairly fund federal healthcare
programs (Medicaid). Throughout his term he encouraged and supported ways to
improve upon the delivery of County services in the most efficient and less costly ways,
but always to make sure that quality was never sacrificed, and encouraged
professionalism at all levels.

Now retired, we frust Rudy is enjoying more time with his wife Doris, his daughter Lisa
and their son Erich, along with their grandchildren. Best wishes to you Rudy and thank
you for enriching our lives.
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SULLIVAN COUNTY DEPARTMENT DIRECTORY & OTHER OFFICIALS
Alphabetical Listing

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OFFICE ..oivtecvinsrnivsnsssininsssnsssssssresssessmssssnnssses s Tel. 603-863-2560
................................................................................................................ Fax. 603-863-2314
..................................................................... E-mail: commissioners@sullivancountynh.gov
...................................................................... Address: 14 Main Street, Newport NH 03773

Donald 8. Clarke - Chair”, {District 1: Serving a 4 Yr Term)

Bennie C. Nelson - Vice-Chair* (District 2: Serving a 2 Yr Term)

Ethel Jarvis - Clerk*® (District 3: Serving a 2 Yr Term)

Ed Gif de Rubio - County Manager

Mark Pitkin - Treasurer®

CONSERVATION DEPARTMENT ....ccmre it sms e s e s bbb s Tel. 603-863-4297
................................................................................................................ Fax. 603-863-4730
........................................................................... E-mail: janice.heighes@email.nacdnet.org
...................................................................... Address: 24 Main Street, Newport NH 03773
Janice Heighes - District Manager
Board of Supervisors: David Grobe (Chair - Plainfield), Leon Stevens

(Vice Chalr - Claremont), John Luther (Treasurer - Acworth), Cornelia Sargent

{Claremont}, and Doddridge Johnson (Sunapee)
Associate Supervisor: Richard Elsesser (Acworth)

COOPERATIVE EXTENSION ..cvertisieinisisssssnsssisssssssass s sassnasssbessesmasanssssssenraneas Tel. 603-863-8200
................................................................................................................ Fax. 603-863-4730
................................................................................................ E-mai: seth.wilner@unh.edu
.............................................................................................. Web site: http:/feeinfo.unh.edu
...................................................................... Address: 24 Main Streef, Newport NH 03773

Educators & Program Associates:

4-H Youth Development — Nancy Berry and Robin Luther

Agriculiural Resources & Environmental Stewardship — Seth Wilher

Courty Forester — Chuck Hersey

Family and Consumer Resources — Gall Kennedy

Family Lifeskifls — Donna Meuse

Nuftrition Connections - Sandy Trybulski

COUNTY ATTORNEY OFFICE .overoinricrsmssnsinesssssssssssessassranesssssssasarssnssses Tel.603-863-7850/9365
................................................................................................................ Fax. 603-863-0015
....................................................................................... E-mail: ca3@sullivancountynh.gov
....................................................................... Address: 14 Main Street, Newport NH 03773
Mare Hathaway - Aftorney™
David Park - Assistant Atforney

COUNTY FACILITIES & OPERATIONS ....c.oivieciesicninsssresnssinsssnsssessressressresssessens Tel. 803-542-8511
cemteaemneeneenntee et e trrapanan ..Fax, 603-542-9214
Address 5 Nursmg Home Dnve Claremont NH 03743

Gregory Chams Direcfor

DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS 1eiiueieeeissersnsssnssessessasssssnsssssserasssnmnesserssansss Tel. 603-542-8717

................................................................................................................ Fax. 603-542-4311

................................................................................... E-mail: scotth@sullivancountynh.gov

eemeresesbeteestbtteeenneeeemeneeseneereinrneenre Address; 103 County Farm Road, Claremont NH 03743
Scott Hagar - Superintendent

HUMAN RESOURCE DEPARTMENT c.c..eevivevaeeressresassssnssanssressmmsansrecsssrsremnrrcnrons Tel, 603-542-8511

e eeeeireseenereteesiesteserEiiinee et ra ety et b b ae bt I s e eadeeaed 414 EE LR R PR R RS KR E R R e e Re Fax. 603-542-9314

....................................................................... ereereennes E-MNL peterf@sullivancountynh.gov

........................................................ Address: 5 Nursing Home Drive, Claremont NH 03743
Peter Farrand — Director

HUMAN SERVICES DEPARTMENT .1vevveereereermreeeeransemesesnersesssnmsessesnnes Tel. 603-542-9511 Ext. 210
..Fax. 603-542-9214
E-mail hemec@sulhvancounggnh gov
...................................................... Address 5 Nursmg Home Drive, Claremont NH 03743
Sherrie Curtis - Human Services Coordinator
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SULLIVAN COUNTY DEPARTMENT DIRECTORY & OTHER OFFICIALS
Alphabetical Listing - Confinued ...

INURSING HOME  11stireereirmrsrsrsreeseieeimssasissssssssssssssssssmssssssssssssssnrsrssnssrsrsrsrasssns Tel. 603-542-8511

......................................................... E-mail: nursinghome@su

Fax. 603-542-9314

llivancountynh.gov

Address: 5 Nursing Home Drive, Claremont NH 03743

Courtney Marshall - Administrator
Heidi Smith - Director of Nursing

REGISTRY OF DEEDS ................................................................................... Tel. 603-863-2110

Fax. 603-863-0013

.. E-mail: sudeseds@nhvi.net

Sharron King - Registrar®
Chaunee Baker - Deputy Registrar

.. Address: PO Box 448, Newport NH 03773

] SHERIFF'S OFFICE 1ovrvmrtrsiesrsrinissrsemmssemensssssisseesabessstsesbesssbessrsmmsssassaetasssnssnss Tel. 603-863-4200
' N e eeerremresssvemeissesErsirisesesessErssEessEssaEesseesseentestiisbeetesetiessesseiactesmeenreererenseenresiis Fax. 603-863-0012
OO OO OV E-mail: sherifi@nhvt.net
" HeererireeseeimeessssreriserseasesemisesnsssseiniiriieaSseessEissstsnsasanrissnnssatas Weh Site: sullivancounty-nh.com
............................................................................ Address: PO Box 27, Newport NH 03773
Michasel L. Prozzo, Jr. - High Sheriff*
William J. Ball - Chief Deputy Sheriff
Barbara E. Sprague — Secretary / Special Depuiy
VICTIM WITNESS PROGRAM .. .everrrerseeeeeensact i csscmsieee st st esesessee st e sk eeeenes Tel. 603-863-8345
................................................................................................................ Fax. 603-863-0015
. .. Address: 14 Main Street, Newpoert NH 03773
Cmdy Vezma Vrctfm thess Coordinator
COUuRTs:
SUPeHOr COUM i s ssas s ssennis Tel. 603-863-3450
Arthur Brennan - Judge
Peter Wolfe - Clerk
Newport District Court ... Tel. 603-863-1832
Bruce Cardelfo — Jusiice
Ed Tenney — Special Justice
Claremont District Court .......cccvcreenininnniersrnssnnen Tel. 603-542-6064
John Yazinski — Justice
Probate ..oceeeeecrieniesinnn, e Tel. 603-863-3150

Michael Feeney - Judge
Diane Davis - Probate Registrar*
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SULLIVAN COUNTY DEPARTMENT DIRECTORY & OTHER OFFICIALS
Direcfory Listing — Confinued ...

The Governors Commission on Alcohol and Drug Abuse Prevention, Intervention and Treatment funds the
following programs, which are administered financially through the County Manager at the Sullivan County
Commissioners' Office in Newport. Details of these programs may be attained through the Sullivan
County Commissioners’ Office at 14 Main Street Newport NH 03773,

DisTrICT COURT DIVERSION PROGRAM
Program Director — Douglass Roberts
Sullivan County
.......................................... Tel. 603.542-9511 Ext. 202

PARENTS As TEACHERS
Program Director — Jana Gillespie
crrrr st cene e e e me e 1€, B03,542-4885

_ STRENGTHENING FAMILIES PROGRAM 6-11/10-14 AND PARENT CIRCLES

T Program Co-Directors — Nancy Berry / Gail Kennedy of UNH
Cooperative Extension

........................................................ Tel. 603.863-8200

SuLLIVAN COUNTY STUDENT COUNSELOR LADC PROGRAM
Program Director — Ramona Berman
........................................................ Tel, 603.863-2414

The Workforce Opportunity Council and the Office of Juvenile Jusfice Division provides funding for the
following two youth programs, which the County Manager, through the Sullivan County Commissioners’
Office also provides financial administration of. Details of these programs may be attained through the
Sullivan County Commissioners’ Office at 14 Main Street Newport NH 03773.

CLAREMONT YOUTH COLLABORATIVE: THE RED ELEPHANT
Program Director — Pam Humphrey
....................................................... Tel. 603, 542-9096
NEWPORT ENRICHMENT TEAM

Program Director — Sam Clough
........................................................ Tel. 603.863-0765

* Indicates elected County officials
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SULLIVAN COUNTY FACTS PAGE

BRIEF HISTORY

Sullivan County is located in the West Central area of New Hampshire. The county was
named after Brigadier General John Sullivan, a Revolutionary war hero in late 1700's.
Previously Sullivan County was part of Cheshire County. On July 5, 1827 Sullivan County
came into being and established its own recording site in Newport, which is currently the
county seat. The county consists of 528 square miles and includes fourteen towns and one
city™*:

Acworth, Charlestown, Claremont®, Cornish, Croydon, Goshen, Grantham, Langdon,
Lempster, Newport, Plainfield, Springfield, Sunapee, Unity, and Washington.

The population in Sullivan County is currently 41,283 (Estimate extracted from LGC

2004/2005 NH Municipal Officials Directory).

COUNTY GOVERNMENT

< Sullivan County employs 260 employees (part and full time, effective 6-25-05 pay
end).

% The majority cf the employees are employed at the Sullivan County Nursing Home in
Unity, followed by Department of Corrections, Facilities & Operations, Sheriff's Office,
Registry of Deeds, Attorney’s Office, County Commissioners’ Office, Cooperative
Extension, and Conservation Department. Per NH State mandates the County
subsidizes employees in the following programs: Victim Witness Protection,
Conservation and Human Services.

< The County owns approximately 1,500 acres of land, which includes, in Newport, the
Remington B. Woodhull County complex and Records Building oh Main Street, and in
Unity, the Nursing Home, Department of Corrections, Maple Hill, and several out
buildings, along with several land properties iocated in the Town of Unity.

COUNTY GOVERNMENT IS MADE UP OF TWO BRANCHES

The Executive Branch consists of three Commissioners with two commissioners elected
every two years and the third commissioner every four years. The Board of Commissioners
duties are mandated by NH Statute RSA 28. The Commissioners are part-time elected
officials responsible for overall supervision of County Departments, buildings and land, and
exercise budgetary oversight over all County expenditures. The Commissioners meet the
first and third Tuesday, of each month, with department heads to discuss old and new
business. The Commissioners submit, on a fiscal year (July 1st to June 30th), a budget to
the County Delegation for approval. Minutes from the Commissioners public meetings may
be attained through the Commissioners Office or can be viewed on line at:

www.sullivancountynh.gov

The Legislative Branch, the County Delegation, consists of thirteen elected Representatives.
The role of the County Delegation is to approve the necessary funds to operate the County.
The Delegation Executive Finance Committee reviews the Commissioners’ budget, then
submits the budget (with any modifications) to the full County Delegation who then vote on
the funds. County Delegation minutes may also be attained from the Commissioners Office.
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COUNTY GOVERNMENT DEPARTMENTS & THEIR ROLE

Commissioners Office - The Commissioners Office is located on Main Street in Newport,
the County seat. This office is the primary office for the Board of Commissioners, and
currently employs four employees: & Payroll Clerk, an Accounts Payable Clerk, an
Administrative Assistant, and a Secretary/Receptionist. The employees perform a number
of duties which inciude: coordinating meetings among officials and public, preparing
budgetary reports for Department Heads and Auditors, handling employee benefits,
accounts payable & receivable, and maintaining records for all County Offices. The Board of
Commissioners convene the first and third Tuesday of each month @ 1:30 p.m. The first
Tuesday meeting is held in Newport, at the Commissioners’ Office Conference Room, while
the third Tuesday meeting is held in Unity, at the Nursing Home Recreation Room.
Commissioners’ meetings are open to the public, excluding Executive Sessicns (non public).
The Board’s goal with each meeting is to allow discussion of old and new business and to
ronitor the progress and performance levels of each of the following departments: County
Manager, Nursing Home, Facilities & Operations, Department of Corrections, Registry of
Deeds, Sheriff's Office, Human Services, UNH Cooperative Extension, Conservation, County
Attorney's Office, Victim / Witness Program, Payroll, and the County Commissioners’ Office.

County Manager - The County Manager serves as the Commissioners’ agent, for the
financial and administrative management of Sullivan County. The Manager oversees and
coordinates the business, fiscal, purchasing and human resources activities of the following
_departments and functions: 1) Nursing Home, 2) Department of Corrections, 3)
Commissioners’ Office, 4) Maintenance of all County Property, 5) Human Relations, 6)
Communications and Information Technology, 7) Cooperative Extension, and 8)
Conservation District, '

County Treasurer - The Treasurer is a two-year elected term, with the position receiving
its authorization frorm the NH Constitution. The position is part time with duties, mandated
by RSA's that include the accountability of all moneys belonging to the county, with a follow
up report at the end of each fiscal year.

Registry of Deeds - The position of Registrar is a two vear elected position, recelving its
authorization from NH Constitution, Part #2 Article 71 & 72. Sullivan County Registry of
Deeds is located on Main Street in Newport. The duties of the Registrar, dictated by RSA’'s,
include the recording, reproduction and indexing of legal documents pertaining to real
estate, and the reporting to the cities and towns (for tax purposes) of all transfers of
property and the maintenance of records dating back to 1827. The Registry records an
average of 50-75 documents a day, with 30-50 people utilizing the facility per day. Along
with the elected Registrar, the Registry of Deeds currently employs a Deputy Registrar and
two full time and one part time clerk.

Sheriff's Office - The Sheriff's Office receives its legally mandated authorization from NH
Constitution, Part #2 Article 71, and additionally from RSA section 104:6. The Sheriff's
Office is located on Sunapee Street in Newport. Along with the High Sheriff (the chief law
enforcement officer to each Sheriff's Office, a two year elected term) there is a Chief
Deputy, three full time and 7 part time Deputies, and a full time Secretary/Special Deputy.
In New Hampshire, the Sheriff's authority reaches throughout and within the boundaries of
the State, sharing jurisdiction with local law enforcement agencies. Some of their duties
include: rural patrols, criminal investigations, support of local law enforcement initiatives,
vehicle escorts, transport of inmates/juveniles/involuntary emergency admissions, priscner
control, civil services, and Superior Court capiases & extraditions. Check out the Sheriff's
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Office Web site @: sullivancounty-nh.com for further details and to view the County’s “Most
Wanted”.

Attorney’s Office - The County Attorney’s Office is located on Main Street in Newport. The
County Attorney is a constitutionally elected official and is the chief law enforcement officer
in the County. The County Attorney is charged with prosecution of felonies and
misdemeanor appeals from the district courts and works in conjunction with the State
Attorney General’s Office, Sheriff's Department, NH State Police and local police
departments. In addition, the County Attorney represents the County in all civil matters
involving the departments or agents of the county, and works with the medical referee in
cases of untimely deaths. Along with the County Attorney, the County Attorney's Office
currently employs an Assistant Attorney and a full and part time Secretary. The office also
works closely with the Victint Witness Program. The Victim Witness Program was created
to ensure that the rights of the victim are protected; reducing the impact the crime and
‘resulting involvement in the criminal justice system has on the lives of victims and
witnesses. State, Local, and County resources fund this program, which staffs one Victim
Witness Program Coordinator.

Nursing Home - The Sullivan County Nursing Home is located on the County Farm Road in
Unity. The Nursing Home employs approximately 191 and provides both Skilled and
Intermediate levels of care for its residents. The Nursing Home Rehabilitation Department
has available to them a registered Physical Therapist as well as Occupational Therapist when
needed, and the home assists in applying for Nursing Home assistance. Along with the
MacConnell Unit, which was built specifically to meet the needs of the resident with
Alzheimer's Disease, the home also helps with Respite Care - a service allowing someone to
take time off from caring for a family member at home.

CURRENT DAILY RATES: Medicaid $125.30 (effective 02-01-04), Semi-Private $180 (eff. 7-1-
03), and Private $195 (eff. 7-1-03). These rates include: room accommodations, meals
(including special diets ordered by physicians), 24 hour nursing care, assistance with
activities, personal care items, laundry service, routine dental treatments, prescribed
medical dressing items, social services, most recreational activities, and oxygen
concentrators or tanks. Additional items such as physician services, podiatrist services,
pharmacy services, medical supplies are billed to Insurance carriers first then to the
responsible party. An updated list of items available can be obtained by contacting the
Nursing Home at 603.542-9511.

Conservation District - The Conservation District Office is located on Main Street in
Newport. Sullivan County Conservation District is a sub-division of state government
established in 1946 under NH RSA, Chapter 432. The Conservation District is a branch of
county government and funded through the County budget. District programs are
administered by one full-time employee under the direction of an ali-volunteer Board of
Supervisors who must be residents of the County. Among the many services provided are
soil interpretation and capability information, assistance with the preparation of NH Wetland
Permit Applications, calculation of Soil Potential Indexes for Farmland in Current Use, and
sales of native trees and shrubs in the spring. The Conservation District also provides
technical assistance for the installation of conservation practices in partnership with USDA
Natural Resources Conservation Service through the many Farm Bill cost share programs.
The conservation districts act as a link between federal and state agencies and landowners
for-conservation of soil and water resources. '

UNH Cooperative Extension - UNH Cooperative Extension is located in the same building

as the Conservation District office. In partnership with Sullivan County, the State of New
Hampshire and the Federal Government, Cooperative Extension provides practical,
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research-based education and information to people of all ages in Sullivan County. Sullivan
County Extension Educators in Natural Resources, Family, Community and 4-H Youth
Development, advised by a local advisory council, work together to strengthen the local
economy, enhance the environment, develop human potential and strengthen families and
communities. Activities include face-to-face technical assistance, group workshops and
program series, volunteer support, web-based and printed information including fact sheets,
newsletters and updates on timely topics. The County subsidizes a portion of Cooperative
Extension through the use of one of its buildings, Extension Educator travel and expenses,
payroll for two full time support staff and one part time, and through grants.

Department of Corrections — The Department of Corrections is located at the Unity
complex, near the County Nursing Home. The Department of Corrections empioys 32
employees, which includes a Superintendent, a Corrections Secretary, three nurses, and 27
Corrections Officers. The Department of Corrections operates a Jail (pretrial detention of
-adult males and females awaiting trial and sentencing), House of Corrections (adult males
and females sentenced to 1 year or less), and a Community Corrections program consisting
of a Transitional Housing Unit, Work Release, and Home Confinement and GPS/RF Electronic
monitoring. The Department of Corrections also provides juvenile tours and diversion tours
as a deterrent effort for early intervention,
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Sullivan County NH
COUNTY COMMISSIONERS REPORT
FY 2005 Annual Report

The fiscal year 2005 has been another year of significant accomplishment in your County
Commissioners Office. We are continuing to reap the benefits of management changes made

over the past two or three years. These changes started with Ed Gil de Rubio, County Manager,

assuming the day-to-day management responsibilities of the Commissioners Office, which has

resulted in tighter budget controls, improved personnel management and the assembly of a strong

management team. This team includes new leadership at the Department of Corrections and a

new Facilities Director and the contract with Genesis Health care for the management of the

‘Narsing Home. All of these have resulted in noticeable improvement in all these areas.

The assembly of this management team has given the Commissioners the support and expertise
to take a more forward look at what the County needs in order to more effectively serve the
needs of county residents. We have divided our long-range outlook in to two parts, buildings /
facilities and land. On the buildings and facilities front we authorized a study, performed by
Clough Harbour & Associates, to evaluate all of our buildings, some of which have not been
.used for years, to determine which ones may have some future use and which ones need to be
demolished and to put in place a plan to renovate the reusable buildings to correct the problems
brought on by years of deferred maintenance. On the land front we have established a
committee, chaired by Commissioner Jarvis with representatives from the County management
team, UNH Extension, Soil Conservation District, Unity Conservation Committee, NH Fish and
Game Department and others to gather ideas on how to make the 1,500 plus acres of land, owned
by the County, more available for the enjoyment of our residents.

Your County Commissioners continue to be active at the State level as new legislation comes
forward and to minimize the effect of fewer state and federal dollars flowing to the counties.

I want to take this opportunity to thank all of our dedicated county employees for a job well done
and for their cooperation through the period of significant change we have gone through in the
past couple of years. The dedication and teamwork has been outstanding. I particularly want to
thank the staff in the Comimissioners Office for their “can do” attitude during the implementation
of our new payroll and financial management systems. They have gone well beyond the call of
duty and it is much appreciated.

The Board of Commissioners would like to recognize newly retired longterm County
employees, Robert Hemenway, former County Nursing Home Administrator, and Bonnie
Rivard, Director of Nursing for their dedication.

The Board of Commissioners look forward with enthusiasm and optimism for another successful
year. :

Respectfully submitted,
Donald S. Clarke — Chair
Bennie C. Nelson — Vice Chair
Ethel Jarvis - Clerk
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Sullivan County NH
COUNTY MANAGER’S REPORT
FY 2005 Annual Report

FY 05 was earmarked by a significant change in the elected leadership. Representatives
Converse, Jillette, Houde-Quimby, Irish, Prichard, Gale and Osgood became newly
elected County Delegates. Additionally Ethel Jarvis replaced Rudy Adler as a County
Commissioner. Both the new members of the delegation and the new commissioner are
hard working dedicated individuals. They have shown an incredible resilience which in
turn has embellished their learning curve regarding the many complex issues that are
facing county government.

" The focus of the Commissioners and the County Manager is to continue a unified

consensus towards the operation of county government. All of the Department Heads
and Elected Officials whole heartedly work towards this goal. There is a mutual respect
and a direction to provide the citizens of Sullivan County with a governmental form that
is balanced and cost effective.

Medicaid reimbursement was the key political issue for Sullivan County this past year.
Facing funding cutbacks and deliberate quota restrictions by the State, the Board of
Commussioners acquiesced to official policy direction by the County Delegation and
contracted a management agreement to help run the Sullivan County Nursing Home.
This is a very unique public \ private relationship which enables Sullivan County to
pursue various venues of skilled care while enabling us to continue to provide Medicaid
services to the citizens of Sullivan County. It is our goal as elected and appointed
officials to eliminate the tax burden associated with the nursing home while providing a
high quality product. This year’s annual report for the nursing home is somewhat
abbreviated due to the timing of our managerial contract. We did provide all the statistics
that we are obligated by the state statutes. Next year’s report will have a more
informative narrative.

The Commissioners’ Office completed the installation of a new accounting software
package this past December. The new system enables the Department Heads and Elected
Officials to operate a true accrual method for purchasing and reports. Additionally, the
new software is in a window format that is compatible to other Microsoft products.

The upcoming year will move the County towards new directions regarding capital
spending especially at the Unity complex. There has been a sizable amount of money
allocated toward various capital improvements and expenditures. Additionally, the
Commissioners and the County Delegates are jointly addressing the vacant buildings at
the Unity complex. This coupled with looking into various uses for the vast amount of
acreage owned by the County creates a dynamic setting. Two areas that we are currently
analyzing are improvements to the County Jail and whether the County should provide an
assisted living program.
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It is no secret that the current building that houses the DOC is overused and poorly
designed in reference to current correctional standards. In order to determine a direction
for the facility county leadership will have to look into the current criminal justice
system. It is the intention to get feedback from various political and functional segments
of the county through the use of the Criminal Justice Coordinating Committee. It is the
hopes of the Commissioners, the County Manager and the Superintendent of the
Department of Corrections to formulate a positive strategic plan that will enhance the
current needs of the DOC and give the department a sound footing to deal with the issues
of the future.

Assisted living is a venue of mid level care that is rapidly becoming a key component in
the Medicaid scenario. The need for assisted living is due to a limited number of
-. Medicaid assisted living beds in the statc and a policy change by the Department of

Health and Human Services (DHHS). Using Medicaid assessment as a gauge DHHS is
changing the dynamics of Medicaid by redirecting potential and existing nursing home
residents into an assisted living function. The County undertook a preliminary study that
concluded the Sullivan County Nursing Home is in the position to provide some form of
assisted living that will benefit Medicaid residents. Additional studies during the
upcoming year will be conducted in order to bring solid suggestions and options to the
elected leadership.

During the past year Sullivan County lost two long time employees to retirement; Bob
Hemenway and Bonnie Rivard. Bob had been the Administrator at the Nursing Home
for approximately eighteen vears. Bob has played a significant role in transforming the
Nursing Home to its current level of credibility. Bonnie had been the Director of Nursing
for the past three years. Prior to becoming the DON, Bonnie served as a Registered
Nurse and a Supervisor at the Nursing Home for approximately fifteen years. Good luck
to both Bob and Bonnie.

This year’s Annual Report is dedicated to Rudy Adler. Rudy has been instrumental in
putting county government in the fore front of the political curve. The recipient of the
New Hampshire Association of Counties® 2004 “Commissioner of the Year Award,”
Rudy always had his “eye on the prize.” Good luck to both Rudy and his wife Doxis.

Finally, I would like to thank my staff and elected officials for their dedication and hard
work. A tip of the hat to the citizens of Sullivan County; because of your confidence and
understanding you make it all possible.

Respectively Submitted,
Ed Gil de Rubio
County Manager
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Sullivan County NH
SULLIVAN COUNTY ATTORNEYS OFFICE
FY 05 Annual Report

The past year has been a busy one for the Sullivan County Attorney’s Office. In the Sullivan
County Superior Court this office is handling 451 new cases as well as dealing with 316 re-
entries. In addition to the work in the Superior Court, we continue to work closely with area law
enforcement by providing legal advice in criminal investigations and prosecution services in the
District Court, as circumstances require.

We welcome Assistant Sullivan County Attorney, David S. Park to our staff. David brings with

“hiln ‘much experience as former Cheshire County Attorney and most recently, Regional

Prosecutor for Jaffrey, Dublin and Peterborough Police Departments. Assistant County Attorney
Park fills the position left by Richard Anderson, who has assumed a position with a local law
firm. Additionally, we’d like to welcome Holly Pariseau as our part-time secretary. Holly also
maintains part-time employment with the Sullivan County Deeds Office.

Our prosecutorial duties are made easier by the competent and compassionate work of our

. Victim/Witness Coordinator, Cindy Vezina. What is more important, however, is that Ms.

Vezina’s efforts insure that the concerns and questions of those involved in the criminal system
as victims and/or witnesses arc addressed promptly and professionally. Ms. Vezina also plays a
major role in our continued commitment to the victims of violence. Each year she works with
area law enforcement and Women’s Supportive Services to organize the domestic violence
training program we provide Sullivan County law enforcement.

While the prosecutorial duties of the Sullivan County Attorney’s Office take up the majority of
our time and resources, we continne to provide County Government with quality legal
representation.

The delivery of quality, cost-effective legal representation to the citizens of Sullivan County is a
continuing challenge. We continue to work toward the goal of imaging technology. A
substantial step toward that goal has been the addition of an upgraded computer system, allowing
us to effectively handle information-the statements, reports, pleadings, legal research,
memorandums and other documents which are the heart of every lawyer’s workday, as well as
providing us with the capability to manage imaging technology. By taking advantage of this new
cost-effective technology, we will be able to keep pace with an ever-expanding workload.

The major threat to the safety of our community remains substance abuse. Heroin, Oxycontin,
Crack Cocaine, along with other drugs and alcohol play a prominent role in the majority of our
criminal cases. The continued efforts of law enforcement, coupled with effective prosecution
and sentences that recognize the need for both punishment and treatment, remain the most
effective response to this problem. :
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In closing, I would like to thank the citizens of Sullivan County, the County Commissioners and
the members of the Sullivan County Delegation for their continued support. My entire staff and
I are proud to work for and with you for a better Sullivan County.

Respectfully submitted,

Marce B. Hathaway
Sullivan County Attorney
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Sullivan County NH
SULLIVAN COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE
FY 2005 Annual Report

To the Honorable Commissioners of Sullivan County:

Another year has passed, and the Sheriff's Office had a successful and very active year. We
have had a major increase in our transport activity of more than 2,400 individuals transported to
various courts, and other appointments.

We remain pro-active with our Grants, marking a milestone in 2005 with more than $1,000,000
in grant monies received. We will continue to work with grants, both Federal and State, to
benefit Sullivan County.

_This year, we have acquired a $27,000 grant for the “Underage Alcohol Task Force.” This is the

third grant we have received for this worthwhile endeavor, and we continue to work closely with
Claremont, Newport, Sunapee, and Goshen Police Departments as well as the NH State Police
and Liguor Enforcement.

The Western New Hampshire Special Operations Unit {(SOU), which we are a member of,
continues 1o work closely with area agencies. New members from Charlestown and Springfield
Police Departments join Claremont, Newport, and Sunapee to combat drug abuse in Sullivan

County.

The Sheriff's Office is in its second year of providing poiice coverage for the Town of Unity, as
well as our many other duties, including, but not limited to court security, prisoner control, and
civil process.

We were also fortunate enough last year to be able o do some much needed remodeling in the
Sheriff's Office. This is the first time in my tenure as Sheriff that any renovations have been
done. With the assistance, and willingness or my staff we were able fo work with what we have
to remodel, and gain some needed storage space.

The goals of the Sheriff's Office for the upcoming fiscal year are to continue to upgrade our
equipment, computers, filing systems, etc. We will do these things while staying within the
budget, and increasing revenue for the County.

Effective August 1, 2005 we announce the refirement of longtime employee, Lt. William “Chip”
Ball. He is retiring from his full-time position, and has been a full-time employee from 1995 -
2005. We wish him well.

| also want to welcome Denis J. O’Sullivan, il as a full-time deputy sheriff. Denis is an eighteen
(18) year veteran of the Newport Police Department, and we are foriunate to have him with his
experience and knowledge in law enforcement.

As the Sheriff of Sullivan County | would like to thank my staff for another great year. Their hard
work and dedication is appreciated. | would alsc like to thank the Sullivan County
Commissioners, County Delegation, citizens of Sullivan County, and all the law enforcement
agencies in Suilivan County for their continued cooperation and support.

Respectfully submitted,
Michael L. Prczzo, Jr., High Sheriff
MLPjr/bes
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Sullivan County NH

NURSING HOME REPORT
FY 05 Annual Report
Nursing Home Census:
MEDICAID | PRIVATE | MEDICARE| HCBC |PRIVATE| LEAVE |TOTAL DAYS
DAYS DAYS DAYS RESPITE |RESPITE| DAYS FILLED

1ST QUARTER 9,997 2,420 266 62 11 43 12,756
2ND QUARTER 10.414 2,224 278 24 0 58 12,940
3RD QUARTER 8,965 1,624 379 51 12 82 12,031
4TH QUARTER 9,499 1,587 633 37 2 46 11,758
FY '05 TOTAL 39,875 7,855 1,556 174 25 229 49,485
FY 05 Duly Certified Beds: 156
FY 05 Room Rate: Please see “County Government Departiments & Their

Role: Nursing Home, Current Daily Rates”.
FY 05 Additional Narrative: Please see “County Manager's FY 05 Annual

Report” for comment on Nursing Home Report.
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Sullivan County NH
DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS
FY 2005 Annual Report

The Department of Corrections has completed another exciting and productive year. In July, the
Division of Medical Services, under the direction of Carol Lady, RN, hired two additional nurses
allowing us to discontinue nursing services received from the Sullivan County Nursing Home.
In preparation for this change, a new spacious medical services office was constructed to
enhance medical and mental health services provided to the inmate population.

The Division of Community Corrections, under the direction of Sergeant Douglas Roberts,
reported having another banner year. “Small County Program, a Model for New Hampshire’
was the headline for a case study of Sullivan County’s Inmate Transition to Community

Program, which received national attention through the website http:/www.bi.com. Global

Positioning Satellite (GPS) technology has enhanced our ability to track offenders in the
community with triangulation and mapping software.

In addition to providing inmate labor for the Sullivan County Complex, inmate community
service was provided to area towns and municipalities allowing inmates to give something back
to their community. Last year’s details included projects at the Charlestown Fire Department,
the Lempster Fire Department, and the West Unity Church. Inmates also participated in multiple

‘roadside cleanups within the town of Unity.

Training and Staff Development continues to be a high priority within the Department. The
Division of Training and Staff Development, coordinated by Cpl. Dan Gokey, continues to
provide high quality training and development opportunities. In addition to providing an average
of 115 hours of training per officer, many of our officers have received specialized training and
instructor certifications allowing us to be selfsufficient and a valuable training resource to local
law enforcement. We have also become a valuable asset to the New Hampshire Association of
Counties Corrections Academy, providing instructors for Defensive Tactics, Intro to Criminal
Justice, and Crime Scene and Evidence Preservation.

Our inmate census peaked at a record setting 119 offenders during the summer months of 2005;
our female inmate population peaked at 27. The total number of bookings for the year was 963,
of which 51 were for protective custody (intoxication). With an average daily population
consistently exceeding our maximum bed capacity, overcrowding and the lack of programmatic
and operational space within the facility continues to be our chief concem. In October of 2005
Phase II of the P.O.N.L. (Planning of New Institutions) Program, sponsored and funded by the
National Institute of Corrections will be held in Longmont, CO. This phase will focus on the
correctional facility development process and will discuss pre-architectural planning, needs
assessment, consultant selection, and facility programming,.

Once again, I wish to thank my entire staff for their hard work and dedication. As a team we
continue to rise above challenges and obstacles faced during our pursuit of cormrectional

excellence.

Respectfully submitted,
Scott R. Hagar, Superintendent
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Sullivan County NH
HUMAN SERVICES DEPARTMENT
FY 2005 Annual Report

HCBC (Home and Community Based Care)
The county is responsible for 25% of the cost for services provided to recipients in their home.
Sullivan County has approximately 200 active cases. The cost for this service for FY 05 was

$533,896.00.

Provider Payments
The county is responsible for 25% of the cost for services such as prescription drugs,

‘hospitalization, emergency medical services, and durable medical equipment for Medicaid

recipients living in nursing homes and the community. Sullivan County has approximately 450
active cases. The cost for this service for FY 05 was $622, 771.00.

OAA (Old Age Assistance)
The OAA program remains as in the past. This program offers recipients money payment and
medical assistance for individuals 65 years of age and meets the income eligibility guidelines.

-Sullivan County has approximately 70 active cases. The cost for this service for FY 05 was

$39,361.00.

APTD (Aid to the Permanently and Totally Disabled)
The APTD program also remains the same as in the past. This program also offers recipients
monthly money payments and medical assistance for individuals meeting the income level

guidelines. Sullivan County has approximately 350 active cases. The oost for this service for
FY 05 was $262,051.00

Nursing Homes

With the implementation of Senate Bill 409 effective January 1, 1999, the counties started
paying 25% of nursing home care. Sullivan County has approximately 280 recipients in nursing -
homes. The cost for FY 05 was $1,594,191.00.

Board and Care of Children

The counties continue to work with the State of New Hampshire regarding court ordered services
for families and children of Sullivan County. The counties are responsible for 25% of these
costs. The cost for these services for FY 05 was $756,262.00. 341 Children and families were
served.

Incentive Funds

Annually each county is awarded Incentive Funds from the State of New Hampshire for the
putrpose of local agencies to administer programs to prevent court ordered out of home
placement. '
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These funds are distributed to each county based on a formula:

FY ‘05

General Fund Appropriation: $3,163,126.00

County 15% guaranteed amount: $ 474,469.00 $47,446.90
Remaining Amount $2,688,657.00

The remaining amount is based on each county’s juvenile population, for Sullivan County it is
approximately 6%.

The Sullivan County Incentive Funds were awarded at our annual review day. Total funds
received for FY 05 were $141,550.00. Agencies receiving these funds through the application
process were:

“Southwestern Community Services, Good Beginnings, Children & Youth Services, Soup

Kitchen, Sullivan County Sheriff’'s Office, Lake Sunapee Mediation, Women’s Supportive
Services, Claremont Police Department, SAU # 43 Early Childhood Support Team, Girl’s
Incorporated of NH, Big Brother-Big Sister Program and West Central Services.

Respectfully submitted,
Sherrie Curtis, Coordinator

Human Services
Sullivan County NH
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Sullivan County NH
FACILITIES & OPERATIONS DEPARTMENT
FY 2005 Annual Report

FY 2005 proved to be an extremely active one for Sullivan County’s Facilities Department.
Since coming on board as the Facilities Director for the County in July of 2004, I havebeen busy
familiarizing myself with the buildings and land owned by Sullivan County, getting to know the
people who work in these buildings and coordinating the plarmmg and completlon of numerous
projects related to facilities. -

Highlights of FY 2005 include;

Major upgrades to the HVAC systems at the Remington B. Woodhull County complex
(located in Newport) including a new cooling tower, extensive re-piping in the boiler
room, installation of a computer driven control system for the heating and cooling
components and installation of sprayed in place foam insulation in various locations. In
addition to making the Remington B. Woodhull County complex a more comfortable
place for both staff and the public, these improvements will result in substantial long
term savings in the costs of heating and cooling. -

Hiring of a fulltime Senior Maintenance Worker whose prnimary responsibility is
maintenance and repairs at the Sullivan County Department of Corrections.

Replacement of two boilers at the Sullivan County Department of Corrections
Replacement of the main fire tube in one of the low-pressure steam boilers servicing the
Sullivan County Nursing Home.

Purchase of a new F450 1 ton dump truck with a snowplow and sander.

Development of a master planning process with two goals in mind. First, to take a
comprehensive look at all of the buildings at the Unity complex and make
recommendations for their future use. Second, to take a comprehensive look at the,
approximately, 1,500 acres of land owned by Sullivan County and to make
recommendations regarding future management.

These highlights represent only a small part of what the Sullivan County Facilities Department is
doing everyday, none of which would be possible without the hard work and dedication of the

many talented staff members of the department. I would like to take this opportunity to thank
them for their efforts. I would also like to thank the County Manager and his staff along with the

County Commissioners for their support and encouragement during my first year as the Sulhvan
County Facilities & Operations Director.

| Respectfully Submitted

Greg Chanis, Facilities & Operations Director
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24 Main Street, Newport, NH 03773 Tel. (603) 8§63-4297

a SULLIVAN COUNTY CONSERVATION DISTRICT

ANNUAL REPORT
FY 2005

MISSION STATEMENT: To take available technical, financial, and educational resources,

whatever their source, and focus or coordinate them so that they meet the needs of the local land
user. We coordinate these services in partnershlp with the USDA Natural Resources
Conservation Service (NRCS).

The services to Sullivan County included:
.e._ TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE - Technical assistance was provided to landowners in

Sullivan County either directly by the District Manager or through our technical partner, the
USDA Natural Resources Conservation Service (NRCS). There were 13 requests from towns
for assistance, 3 from public schools, 6 from non-profit organizations, 23 from private
consultants and there were twelve assists provided to both state and federal agencies. The
following is a listing of services and acreage affected within Sullivan County:

N N N N N N N N N NN

v

432 Acres of Nutrient Management planning

3 Agricultural Waste Management and Compost Systems designed

151 Acres of Grazing Management assistance

4 Wildlife Habitat plans written

40 Acres of Invasive Plant Control

406 Acreage under new Conservation Plans

1 Milk house Waste System was designed and installed

1 Rock lined Waterway was installed

4 Plans were written for woods roads

3,400 feet of woods roads were installed

2 projects were completed to exclude livestock from stream banks

Soil Capability information for 132 individual parcels of land

Soil Potential Indexes for Farmland in Current Use and Current Use information

to 41 landowners -

Wetland permitting mformatmn, assistance and/or perr_mt preparation to 45
landowners _

Conservation Tree and Shrub distribution — 2,400 conservation plants, fruit trees,

bushes, and wetland flowers were sold to 84 landowners. Compost bins were also
offered through the sale this year.

Assessments and recommendations for 72 1and0wners with natural resource concerns

e 2005 Farm Bill Dollars received in Sullivan County

Fifty-two applications were received for 2005 Farm Bill cost share programs. Out of
-those. 52, 28 were approved for funding. Applications for Farm Bill programs have
doubled this past year. Twenty-two Environmental Quality Incentives Program (EQIP)
applications were approved for a total of $375,468. Four Wildlife Habitat Incentive
Program applications were approved which totaled $15,931. The Wildlife Habitat
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Incentives Program is the only 2002 Farm Bill Program to which nor-agricultural
landowners may apply for the installation of conservation practices. Two applications
have been approved under the Animal Management Assistance (AMA) program with a
funding total of $90,121. Because of the unique partnership between the Natural
Resources Conservation Service and Sullivan County Conservation District the total, to
date, of cost share program dollars that have come into Sullivan County and has allowed
landowners to install sound conservation practices is $481,520. This total has more than
double from what it was last year. Eight landowners have applied for the Conservation
Security Program (CSP). CSP is a one-time payment program that rewards landowners
who have a documented history of good land stewardship. Though these applications
have not, to date, been approved for funding, there is the strong possibility that 6 will be
funded for an additional $56,626. All technical assistance necessary to implement Farm
Bill programs is provided by NRCS at no additional cost to the landowner. Assistance

" includes surveys, designs, and long range conservation plans. $1.2 million in Farm Bill
program funds were allocated for the state of NH this year — once again we demonstrated
the need for funding in our county and the need was recognized in the amount of funding
that was approved.

-+ MEETINGS:

v Local Led Workgroup Meeting - ‘A joint Local Led Workgroup meeting was held by
Sullivan and Cheshire Conservation Districts in March to establish priorities and issues
that should be addressed through the USDA Environmental Quality Incentives Program.
(EQIP). Participants included local town officials, UNH Cooperative Extension, Farm
Bureau, and USDA Natural Resources Conservation Service personnel. This yearly
meeting allows for local input and recommendations regarding how EQIP cost share
dollars should be allocated and in what areas based on local needs.

v’ Annual Meeting — Our annual awards dinner/meeting was held in May at the Indian
Shutters Restaurant in Charlestown. Guest Speaker was Sam Stoddard, Coos County
Forester with UNH Cooperative Extension, who gave a presentation, through series of
historic photographs, video clips and stories, of the history, life and times of loggers,
timber barons and river drivers in New England over the past 300 years. The
Conservationist-of-the-Year award this year was presented to the Haynes Farm on Route
-11/12 in Claremont for outstanding conservation efforts and commitment to good land
stewardship for two generations.

Our sincere gratitude and appreciation goes to our technical partner, the USDA Natural
Resources Conservation Service for their continuing technical assistance to Sullivan County
Conservation District for both Farm Bill program assistance as well as non-Farm Bill related
technical assistance to landowners. Our unique working relationship with NRCS allows us,
together, to carry out our mission to protect and conserve the soil and water resources of Sullivan
County landowners.

Respectfully submitted,

Janice E. Heighes
District Manager
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Sullivan County NH
UNH COOPERATIVE EXTENSION
2004-05 ANNUAL REPORT

The University of New Hampshire Cooperative Extension provides practical education to people -
of all ages. The partnership of Sullivan County, the State of New Hampshire and the U.S.
Department of Agriculture forms UNH Cooperative Extension. In every Sullivan County
community, this program is at work, increasing economic development, enhancing the
environment, supporting community needs and developing human potential. Sullivan County
Extension educators provide educational programs in Agriculture, Natural Resource
Management, Family Development, Consumer Education, Community Development and Youth
‘Development, with the assistance of a local advisory council. Sullivan County residents also
benefit from a wide range of statewide Extension programs directed by state Extension
Specialists. ‘

* Educational radio spots and newspaper articles throughout the year by Extension
Educators — WNTK, cable access TV stations in Claremont and Newport, Eagle Times,
Valley News and other local newspapers; five newsletters to 1700 households in Sullivan
County.

* Extension educators participated in numerous countywide events, forums, fairs and
public exhibits including the Cornish Fair, Sullivan County Agricultural Festival, Civil
Rights Day Volunteer Fair, Claremont Fall Festival, Career Days and Health Days for
area high schools and the County Commissioners’ Pancake Breakfast in Unity.

AGRICULTURAL NATURAL RESOURCESV & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
PROGRAMS : /

* The Sullivan. County UNH Cooperative Extension Agricultural Resources program area
assisted commercial and non-commercial growers in all phases of agricultural production
and management. This includes crop production methods, pest management, farm
management, financial management, animal husbandry, risk management, nutrient
management, and marketing. -

% Five major areas of agricultural programming were continued this past year, these
included: farm management and record keeping, marketing, pasture management, whole
farm planning/holistic 1nanagement and farmer driven research in sustainable

' agnculture

* In addition to these educational programs, over 150 farm visits were made, and over 300
- 'phone calls were responded to. Not only were the services of the Sullivan County
Agricultural Resources Educator made available to growers, but so too were the
knowledge and services of 12 different agricultural specialists who work with UNH
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Cooperative Extension. Additionally, 4 grants were funded this past year for over
$9,000.00. Grant writing assistance was also provided to two farms secking funding for
projects. '

Sullivan County UNH Cooperative Extension office has provided support to the
agricultural community in diverse areas including: agricultural engineering, nutrient
management, home gardening, crop production, animal husbandry, organic production
methods, pesticide re-certification credits, on-farm research projects, farm management,
and support for new and beginning farmers groups.

The Sullivan County Master Gardener Program continued to expand over the past year.
An active core of 20 Master Gardeners was augmented by new interns in May 2005.
Sullivan County Master Gardeners have conducted educational programs around the

~ county. -

In addition to the activities listed above, the Agricultural Resources educator provided -
support to Sullivan County Farm Bureau, the Cold Pond Community Land Trust, County
Garden Clubs, the Sugar River Vocational Technical School, Stevens Middle High
School, the Cornish Fair and other county organizations. He also has worked to help
producers deal with production problems and implement new technologies.

The activities listed above have resulted in increased farm profits, increased efficiency,
improved environmental conditions, and a more robust agricultural community here in
Sullivan County.

4-H YOUTH DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM

*

With the help of 94 volunteer leaders, the 4-H Youth Development Program fostered life
skill development in youth. This year 293 youth took part in 23 community clubs and 7
family clubs to build personal skills in communication, relationships, leadership and -
management through their participation in club and county project activities.

The Newport Enrichment Team (NET) continued to offer after-school and summer
activities for teens in Newport during its second year of existence. A Teen Center was
opened in the downtown area, dances were held, and job shadow experiences, classes and
activities were offered. NET also worked with other community partners to construct a
low ropes course behind the high school during the past year. With the help of Extension
and other board members, NET is working to build assets for young people in the
Newport area. '

Sullivan County 4-H members were recruited to form a “Life Smarts” Team to study
personal finance, the environment, health, technology and consumer responsibilities and -

.. then to.compete in an online competition. After several months of weekly practice

sessions, the team qualified for the state quiz bowl contest in Manchester, NH. The
Sullivan County team won the New Hampshire Life Smarts contest along with an all
expense paid trip to compete in the national Life Smarts Contest in San Francisco,
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California. The team did well in the national contest, scoring in the middle third of the
teams competing from all over the US.

Leader training sessions conducted during the fall included “Organizational Leader
Training™ with 15 attending, Clothing Leader Training with 7 attending and Cloverbud
Leader Training with 4 attending. Video conferences on “Bullying” also reached 5 more
community members.

The Sullivan County 4-H Teen Club continued to meet monthly and grow in popularity.
Seventeen 4-H teens and three adult chaperones traveled to Franklin County,
Pennsylvania for a week in July. Our hosts took us to Hershey Park, Harrisburg,
Gettysburg, and Washington, D. C. to see the national monuments and other historical
sites. This past year was spent raising funds to host teens from Wisconsin as the firgt part

" of another 4-H Teen Exchange program.

The Sullivan County Strengthening Families Program 10-14 (SFP 10-14) Project was
conducted by the Family & Consumer Resources and 4-H Youth Development Educator
with a $30,000 grant through the Govemor’s Drug Abuse Prevention, Intervention and
Treatment Fund. The primary goal of the project was to train & support five teams of
three people to teach Strengthening Families 10-14 Programs (SFP 10-14) in different
locations around Sullivan County. SFP 10-14 is a family strengthening program that
involves youth ages 10-14 and their parents/caregivers meeting for seven consecutive
weeks and has been shown to be effective at preventing alcohol and drug abuse in youth.
Six class series were held in Claremont, Newport, Charlestown, and Plainfield reaching
50 Sullivan County families (64 adults and 66 youth participating) th15 past fall and
winter.

FAMILY & CONSUMER RESOURCES PROGRAM

*

A total of 492 parents participated in parent education programs offered through the
Sullivan County office by attending Family Focus parent education program series,
workshops, one-on-one sessions and receiving Cradle Crier/Toddler Tales age- paced

- monthly newsletters focused on early childhood development.

Two National Satellite Conferences on Parenting & Bullving were down linked to
Sullivan County and attended by 11 area educators, health and social service providers.

Safety Awareness in the Food Environment and ServSafe Food Safety programs were
attended by a total of 18 local restaurant and other food services personnel.

UNHCE money management publications and program series reached many individuals
and families in Sullivan County. Overall goals of the program series are to help

~ participants reduce debt and increase savings. Making Money Work for You five-session,

money management series reached 38 Sullivan Academy Alternative Sentencing
Program members referred as part of their individual selfimprovement plans. Planning
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Ahead/Staying Ahead money management program reached 16 inmates at Sullivan
County House of Corrections Transitional Housing Program.

Planning Ahead/Staying Ahead nutrition and money management agency training
program reached 11-providers from health, social service, and educational agencies who
will now use the program resources to help their caseloads in the areas of budgeting, food
safety, nutrition and efficient use of their limited food resources.

UNH Cooperative Extension’s “Sullivan County Strengthening Families Projec?” was
expanded and successfully funded for *05 $30,000 through the Govemor’s Drug Abuse
Prevention, Intervention and Treatment Fund. Besides recruiting and training new
community educators to work along with current teams to implement SFP 10-14 in
different locations around the county, the project will also include recruiting and training

" local facilitators to run “circle talks,” discussion groups for parents and other interested .

adults held in neighborhood homes for the purpose of increasing awareness, connections,
and action in relation to prevention of risky behaviors like substance abuse. A family
strengthening program to reach parents, caregivers and younger children is also part of
the expanded project plan.

"NUTRITION CONNECTIONS PROGRAM

*

Limited income residents from Claremont, Newport, Charlestown, Washington,
Grantham, Springfield, and Plainfield participated in a series of food and nutrition or
basic money management lessons. Nutrition Connections programming reached 28
families, either in a group series, the home study course or individual visits.

Using a series of nutrition and fitness lessons, Nutrition Connections programming in
schools reached 374 youth from Claremont, Newport, Langdon and Charlestown. The
North Walpole School serves students from Cheshire and Sullivan counties and the
lessons are co-taught with Christine Parshall, Program Associate from Cheshire County.
Additional programming reached 36 preschoolers in Head Start programs.

‘Families were referred by various agencies including Southwestern Community Services,

WIC, Southwestern Homeless Services, Good Beginnings, Developmental Services of
Sullivan County, and Welfare offices. Some food stamp recipients referred themselves to
the program through information provided in the state-wide Smart Choices Newsletter
and Nutri-News newsletter, and flyers distributed to the schools and Head Start.

A series of nutrition and money management lessons were presented to City Welfare with
Gail Kennedy, Family and Consumer Resources Educator. :

.. Planning Ahead...Staying Ahead training for agencies was presented with Gail Kennedy.

Follow-up sessions are ongoing for this series of money management and nutrition
lessons for agencies to use with the limited income families they serve.
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Nutrition Connections was promoted throughout the county by the distribution of
materials and brochures, school and agency contacts and visits, and newsletter articles.

FAMILY LIFESKILLS PROGRAM

*

Working with TANF recipients in the three week intensive LEAP program and
individually, the Family Lifeskills Program has reached families within Sullivan and
Grafton counties; including parents from Claremont, Enfield, Lebanon, Newport, Orford,
Springfield, Washington and West Lebanon. For many parents, participating in the
Family Lifeskills Program has helped them to become comnected with the larger
community, t0 gain access to community resources and supports and been the first step
toward the larger goal of self-sufficiency.

) Many parents referred to the Family Lifeskills Program have children with disabilities.

The addition of lessons that assist parents with recognizing and appreciating children’s
unique differences and learning styles, helped parents to have a greater understanding of
the parental challenges they’ve faced within their home and with the educational system.
A review of learning styles, supporting learning and Individual Education Plans (IEP)
equips parents with much of the information needed to meet their children’s educational
needs and to feel comfortable advocating on their behalf. Participants have commented
that the information covered in these lessons helped them to become more sensitive to
their child’s difficulties with learning and less critical and frustrated with school. With
the knowledge gained from these lessons, some participants were prompted to take
different approaches to assisting their children with their homework and became more
involved in what was going on at school. All participants receive information about the
IEP process, 504 Plan’s and resources they can contact.

Graduates of the Family Lifeskills Program have gone on to Alternative Work
Experience Programs (AWEP), where they have begun to acquire transferable skills in a
career area of interest. Other graduates have gone on to obtain their GED and some have
taken college level classes to emhance their employability. Most are closer to their
employment objectives and managing better on their limited resources. Others have
begun working with other job readiness programs, arc employed at least part time or
working full time. The Family Lifeskills Coordinator provides continuation of support to
graduates for assistance with skill building and the application of life skills, as it relates to
enhancing their ability to become employed.

FOREST RESOURCES PROGRAM

*

Extension Educator for the Forest Resources Program, Sullivan County UNH
Cooperative Extension, examined 7,610 acres of forestland and advised 39 landowners
on management practices that enhance and sustain the timber, wildlife, water, recreation
and biodiversity values of their forestland.
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Forest Resource Educator administered Forest Land Enhancement Program to help
landowners apply stewardship principles on their properties. 10 landowners developed
forest stewardship plans, created wildlife habitat and conducted timber stand
improvement on 880 acres in Sullivan County.

Forest Resource Educator provided technical assistance and conducted needs assessment
of 26 landowners from nine Sullivan County towns in support of their application to
NRCS Environmental Quality Incentives Program (EQIP) which provides cost-share
dollars for practices that improve and protect forestland. A total of 22 forest landowners
applied for $249,969 in cost-share funds to have long-term stewardship plans developed
for land, conduct timber stand improvement, create and enhance wildlife habitat, provide
recreational opportunities, create access roads and protect water quality.

Forest Resource Educator developed, coordinated and conducted nine forest related
workshops and presentations attended by 280 people. Educational topics covered -
included: information on the Current Use Program, map and compass training, land
conservation, forest history, forest ecology, silviculture, stand dynamics, long-term forest
stewardship and choosing which trees to cut and which to grow.

Forest Resource Educator provided educational opportunities for 44 children in Sullivan
County. This included tree identification at the Bluff School in Claremont, Envirothon
forestry training at Stevens High School in Claremont and mock interviews for students
in the forestry program at Sugar River Valley Regional Technical Center in Newport.

Forest Resource Educator assisted over 25 forestrelated enterprises, including private
foresters, timber buyers and harvesters, sawmills, and Christmas tree growers.

Forest Resource Educator served as the Sullivan County Chair of the NH Tree Farm
program and coordinated the Tree Farm program in the county. 92 Tree Farmers manage
over 45,000 acres in Sullivan County to benefit the lorigterm productivity of our forest
for current and future generations. I also worked closely with the Sullivan County
Chapter of the NH Timberland Owners Association to promote longterm forest
stewardship and the value of a viable forest-products industry in maintaining our rural
quality of life. - | ' :
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Sullivan County NH Convention

2005 / 2006 Directory

District 1 — Cornish, Grantham and Plainfield; District 2 — Crovdon, Goshen, Newport,
Springfield and Washington; Distriet 3 — Sunapee; District 4 — Claremont Wards 1-3,
Lempster and Unity; and District 5 — Acworth, Charlestown, and Langdon.

Rodeschin, Beverly

Representative Name District ‘Ways to contact vour delegate ...
Cloutier, John 4 16 Centennial Street Apt. 2, Claremont NH 03743
Delegation Chair E-mail: jocloutier@adelphia.net
Tel: 542-6190
Converse, Larry 4 7 Clover Street, Claremont NH 03743-3027
Delegation Vice Chair E-mail: Jcallcone@aol.com
Executive Finance Committee Tel: 542-2180
_ | Jillette, Arthur G. Jr. 2 80 Brickyard Road, Goshen NH 03752
" Delegation Clerk E-mail: agi@theworld.com
Tel. 863-2788
Fax. 863-8178
Ferland, Brenda 5 287 River Road, Charlestown NH 03603
Executive Finance Committee - Chair Tel: 826-5034
Donovan, Tom 4 165 Mulberry St., Claremont NH 03743
Executive Finance Comniittee — E-mail: mrtedd2001@vyahoo.com
Vice Chair Tel: 542-0435
Houde-Quimby, Charlotte 1 PO Box 95, Meriden NH 03770
Executive Finance Committee E-mail: cquimby@tds.net
_ Tel: 469-3205
Irish, Christopher 4 95 Winter Street, Claremont NH 03743
Executive Finance Committee E-mail: chris.irish@mascomabank.com
Tel. 542-9727
Prichard, Stephen G. 1 PO Box 1220, Grantham NH 03753
Executive Finance Commiittez E-mafl: stevecarol@srnet.com
Tel: 863-92403
Franklin, Peter 2 PO Box 411, Newport NH. 03773
Tel: 863-1923
Gale, Harry S. Jr. 3 PO Box 730, Sunapee NH 03782
E-mail; Hgale66@aol.com
. Tel: 763-4433
Osgood, Philip “Joe” 4 19 Whitcomb Lane
Claremont NH 03743
Tel, 543-0762
Phinizy, James 5 Box 175, Black North Road, Acworth NH 03601
E-mail: jgphinizy@yahoo.com
Tel: 835-6074

2

336 Sunapee St, Newport NH 03773
. Tel: B&3-1941

Committee Appointments:

o Nursing Home Resident Trust Fund Committee — Rep. Donovan

alternate)

Cooperative Extension Committee - Rep. Houde-Quimby
Solid Waste District Committee.— Rep. Franklin

- .5% Monies / Incentive Funds Commiitee — Rep. Franklin
Sullivan County Land Management Use Committee — Rep. Ferland (Cloutier alternate)
Sullivan County Facilities (buildings) Committee — Rep. Converse (Jillette alternate),
Sullivan County Criminal Justice Coordinating Committee — Rep. Osgood (Prichard

Page 29




Sullivan County NH-

STATE - COUNTY DELEGATION
MEETING MINUTES

FY 2005 Annual Report

The following pages reflect the minutes of all meetings held by the full Delegation
during Fiscal Year o5. The meeting dates shown are:

~_ Sep 27, 2004

Dec 8, 2004

Jan 28, 2005
Mar 7, 2005

Jun 16, 2005

Jun 28, 2005

Full Delegation FY O5 Fourth Quarter Report Meeting

Full Delegation Special Meeting
o Election of Officers

- Full Delegation Second Quarter Report Meeting

Full Delegation Special Meeting

Public Hearing: Presentation of County Commissioners
Proposed FY 06 Budget (Draft format)

Annual Convention: FY 06 Budget Review and Approval
(Draft format)

Public can view meeting minutes from the Sullivan County Delegation and
Executive Finance Committee at the Sullivan County Commissioners’ Office
Monday through Friday during regular office hours 8 a.m. - 4 p.m.

Check out the County website at www.sullivancountynh.gov for the County Board
of Commissioners meeting minutes. This website also includes a newly added
page to view your State / County Delegation representative, how to contact them
and, coming soon, will include a link to their meeting minutes, also!
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Sullivan County Delegation

Type of Meeting: Sullivan County Full Delegation

Date/Time: September 27, 2004 / 9:30 a.m.

Place: Newport Remington Woodhull County Complex
Jury Assembly Room

Members Present: Reps. Jay Phinizy, Dick Leone, Brenda Ferland, Connie Jones, John
Cloutier, Peter Franklin, Dave Allison, Beverly Rodeschin, Gordon Flint

Members Absent: Reps. Peter Burling, Joe and Sandy Harris

T FG ommissioners Present: Don Clarke, Ben Nelson, and Rudy Adler

Other Elected Officials and Connty Employees Present: Ed Gil de Rubio, Peter
Farrand, Dodi Violette, and Mike Prozzo

Meefing was called to order at 9:52 am. by the Chair, Rep. Phinizy.

Pledge of Allegiance was led by Rep. Rodeschin.

Rep. Phinizy then introduced some special guests including several candidates for coumnty
offices state senate, and state rep. They included Unity’s Ethel Jarvis, Claremont’s Larry

Converse, Cornish’s Stuart Hodgeman Goshen’s Axrt Gﬂlette and Langdon’s Dave
French.

Rep. Ferland moved, Rep. Jones seconded motion. to aceept the minutes of the July
2, 2003, meeting Motion was approved unaunimously by voice vote.

Rep. Ferland moved, Rep. Flint seconded a motion to accept the minntes of the June
29, 2004 meeting.

Discussion ensned on minutes after Rep. Franklin questioned various absent motion in
the minutes. '

Delegation agreed to recess for 10 minutes at 10:06 a.m. 1o discuss how to amend June
29, 2004 meeting mimutes to resolve Rep. Franklin’s concerns Rep. Franklin, Redeschin,
and Leone left the meeting fo work out 2 compromise amendment.

The three Rep. discovered some omissions and suggested some insertions fo the June 29,

- meeting minutes.

Rep. Franklin moved, Rep Leone seconded an amendment to the original motion

“proposed. Reps. Ferland and Flint motion approved unanimously by voice vote.

Meeting Mimoetes approved at 1-28-05 meeting Page 1
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Delegation then approved June 29 meeting minntes with the just-approved
amendment. Unanimounsly by voice vote,

Mrs. Jarvis then questioned why a lot of the county delegation meeting minutes for the
FY 2003 Annnal Report were abbreviated.

Rep. Phinizy responded that complete written and andio records of all county delegation
and finance committee minutes are available for public to review said some minutes were
abbreviated so as to save printing costs.

Mis. Jarvis said that if previewing Registry of Deeds records of 150 years ago is
important than preserving county delegation meeting minutes of recent years is just as
-~ mportant.

Mr. Gil de Rubio said that including the full versions of delegation. meeting minutes
would drive up the cost of printing the annual report a lot.

Rep. Phinizy asked Mr. Gil de Rubijo and Sharon Johnson-Callum to research the cost of
including the entire version of minutes in county reports.

Rep. Ferland, Finance Committee Chair, reported that the committee reviewed the year-
end financial figures but tmanimously agreed not to accept them becanse they had not
been fully reviewed. '

The delegation then reviewed the proposed agreement between county management and
pursing home employees that has just been approved by Commissioners. _

M. Gil de Rubio reviewed the proposed agreement, which if approved by the union and
delegation, would increase the county budget by $66,423.

Human Resources Director Peter Farrand also answered questions about the agreement
from delegation members.

Mr. Gil de Rubio stated that the current nursing home budget would absorb the $66,423
increase resulting from the agreement without additional appropriation.

[ Rep. Ferland then discussed the just-completed andit of county finances from Melanson
Heath and Company. Said finance committee didn’t accept audit report becanse it had
- just received report this morning.

Mr. Gil de Rubio reported that the county tax rate has just been set by N.H. Dept. of
Reverme Administration.

M. Gil de Rubio then answered question from Rep. Franklin about the amount of the
surplus, and how much showld be returned to texpayers.

Meeting Mirntes approved at 1-28-05 meeting Page2
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Rep. Franklin said another $300,000 be returned fo taxpayers from surpluses. But Mr. Gil
de Rubio and Rep. Ferland said tax rate has already been set by Dept. of Revenue and it
would be very difficult to re-open budget process so as to refurn surplus.

Rep. Ferland and Comm. Adler said we shouldn’t budget on a “whim”. Said budget
decision were based on what they thought on reliable info at the time what the state
should be giving the county for aid.

Comm. Adler said Commissioners had just received audit early this moring upon

questioning by Rep. Franklin. Stated that Commissioners hadn’t even done exit interview .

with audifors.

Dﬁring meeting Sept. 7 letter from Dept. of Revenue Administration Barbara Robinson
about county tax rates and how is the individual communities are incorporated was .
distributed to delegation.

Questions about auditors® report date being completed Aug. 3, 2004.

Rep. Rodeschin moved, Rep Flint seconded a motion to accept the proposed nursing
home employees contract between the union and connty management. Motion
approved on 2 9-1 voice vote with Rep. Cloutier in opposition.

Rep. Franklin moved, Rep. Leone seconded a motion that the Comnty Delegation
instruet the County Treasurer to close the certificate of deposit in the amoumt of
$220,000 held in the Sugar River Savings Baxk and return the money to the county
comumissioners to be applied to the amonnt that is to be raised by taxes for the Fiscal
Year 2005 Budget.

Rep. Rodeschin spoke in opposition to the motion.

Rep. Jones expressed concem that the delegation had set aside $220,000 fo be used for
capital improvements. But the delegation didn’t specifically agree to a list on which
capital items would make up the $220,000 list. Said $220 000 is tied up in a Certificate of

Deposit.

Rep. Ferland said passing of the motion wouldn’t result in much property tax savings,
and could cause headaches for many of the county’s communities.

Rep. Rodeschin complained that the deIegatibn didn’t receive a list of which capital items
the $220,000 would be spent as proposed by a special delegation committee at the June
29, 2004 meetmg ,

Rep. Ferland moved that the guestion be called. Motion died for a lack of second.

Rep. Franklin and Donovan spoke in high support of the motion.

Mesting Minutes zpproved at 1-28-05 meeting Page 3
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Rep. Flint moved, Rep. Cloutier seconded a motion to table Rep. Franklin®s original
motion. Motion failed on 2 5-5 tie on a roll call vote.

Rep. Flint moved, Rep. Cloutier seconded a motion te call the question. Motion
failed on a 5-5 tie with three absences on a roll call.

County Attornegy Mark Hathaway entered meeting at 12:15 p.m. and was questioned by
delegation about the legality of returning the $220,000 to taxpayets.

Rep. Phinizy recessed the meeting at 12:22 p.m. and said the delegation should return at
1:00 p.m. ) :

W

-~ RECESS

Delegation reconvened at 1:10 p.m. with all members from earlier session in attendance.

Attorney Hathaway said that returning the $220,000 so as to reduce the tax rate no matter
how desirable is not feasible. The $220,000 in a Non-Capital Reserve Fund Authorized
by RSA. 351:C. Again repeated his opinion that before $220,000 can be spent, any
expenditure has to be approved by delegation at a duly warned, public meeting.

Rep. Jones reported that Dept. of Revenue Administration staif employee Barbara
Robinson had told her that while the delegation could legally take $220,00C out of the
budget and refind it to taxpayers, said such a refond could be awkward to implement and
poses a logistic problem to the county’s communities. Ms. Robinson suggested §220,000
could be refunded in the FY 2005 Budget.

Rep. Ferland repeated her opposition to Rep. Franklin’s motion to take $220,000 out of
budget and refund money.

Rep. Franklin repeated his support for his motion.

Mr. Gil de Rubio and Comm. Adler expressed support for Atty. Hathaway®s opinion. Mr.
Gil de Rubio said there is a penalty for early withdrawal of $220,000, which isin &
Certificate of Deposit. -

Rep. Rodeschin moved, Rep. Ferland seconded a motion to call the guestion motion
approved by a 8-1-voice vote with Rep. Franklin in opposition.

Rep. Franklin, motion Rep. Leone seconded that the delegation vote to allow the
certificate of deposit to mature and in the meantime to research and carry thru the
method to return the money including principal and interest to the taxpayers as
soon as possible. :
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o“

Rep. Donovan moved, Rep. Ferland seconded a motion to table Rep. Franklin’s
earlier motion. Motion carried on an 8-2 voice vote with Reps. Franklin and Leone
in opposition.

Mz, (Gil de Rubio distributed a leiter from Claremont’s Goodwin Community Center
Facilities Comm. inviting delegation to attend either one of Sept. 30 meetings of the
committes to discuss fundraising probabilities for 2 new community center.

Comm. Adler updated delegation on county funding of Western Regional Development
Corporation.

Rep Donovan moved, Rep. Jones seconded a motion to adjourn at 1:37 p.m.
liespectﬁﬂly submitted,

mk Cloutier

Clerk

JC/lg
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Sullivan County Delegation

Type of Meeting: Sullivan County Full Delegation

Date/Time: December 8, 2004 / 9:30 a.m.

Place: Newport Remington Woodhull County Complex
- 3" Floor Probate Courtroom

Delegation Members Present: Reps. Jay Phinizy, John Cloutier, Tom Donovan, Peter
Franldin, Beverley Rodeschin, Larry Converse, Arthur Jillette and Charlotte Honde —
Quimby :

Delegation Members Absent: Reps. Harry Gale, Christopher Irish and Stephen Prichard
Commissioners Present: Donald Clarke

* "= Other County Officials Present: Dodi Violette

Meeting was called to order at 9:31 a:m. by the Chair, Rep. Phinizy.

Rep. Donovan moved Rep. Ferland seconded a motion tc adopt the minutes of the
Sept. 27, 2004 delegation weeting. Discussion: Rep. Rodeschin objected to voting on
minutes that she hadn’t yet seen. Sharon Johnson-Callum said the minutes with
correction had not yet been printed. Rep. Rodeschin moved, Rep. Donovan
seconded on mofion te table adoption of the minutes.

Rep. Ferland then discussed emergency replacement of boilers at the House of
Corrections as proposed by Mr. Gil de Rubio and the Commissioners and recommended
by Finance Committee earlier today.

She then announced that Sullivan County Nursing Home (SCNH) Administrator Bob
Hemenway will be retiring in April and that Genesis Corp. will take over management of
SCNIH.

Mr. Gil de Rubio said Genesis will do a bﬁeﬁng for delegation members early next year.
Also he expects no major cost changes will occur in running SCNH as of today.

M. Gil de Rubio said contract with Genesis will be for 1 year only with a 90-day
termination notice needed for Sullivan County to end contract at any time during that
vear. He said proposal has been reviewed by County Attorney Hathawsay, approved by
the Commissioners. Said he wasn’t sure if delegation would have much input on
contract, |

Answered several question on contract from Reps. Donovan, Converse, and Phinizy.

Comm. Nelson entered meeting at 9:59 a.m,

Said Mr. Hemenway will be retiring on Jan. 18, but will stay as a part-time consultant to
Genesis until April 1, 2005. Mr. Gil de Rubic emphasized that SCNH isn’t being
privatized but that Genesis will run it as a public — private partnership. He (Ed Gil de
Rubio) then left at 10:02 p.m.
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Senator Bob Odell entered meeting at 10:02 p.m.

Rep. Ferland then reviewed county finances and recent anditors report with proposed
changes. She also requested that delegation members not bother Mr. Gil de Rubio with a
lot of questions about finances for the next few weels because he has some personal
issues that are presently occupying his time. Suggested they talk o her or the
Commissioners. '

Further discussion and questions on auditors® report from Melanson Heath and Company
ensued.

*- Rep. Pranklin then briefed delegation on $220,000 capital reserve funds currently

invested a Certificate of Deposit (CD).

Rep. Franklin then further briefed delegation on capital reserve funds, which are setting
in a CD unti! a policy on spending money can be established by delegation.

Rep. Ferland then reviewed a timeline for next year on the proposed FY 2006 Budget,
which had been earlier distributed to the delegation.

Rep. Franklin added that county has no Capital Reserve Fund but that $220,000 in
guestion is part of the General Fund per statute and DRA.

Sen. Odell briefed delegation on his activities in the State Senate on behalf of county
budget. He said his priority in the upcoming year will be the state budget the school
funding issue and proposed reforms in Medicaid.

Rep. Ferland moved Rep. Donovan seconded 2 motion to anthorize the transfer of
emergency funds $25,000.00 Acct. # 10407-21095 and $13,600 from vouchers #
003810 and #019368 in Fund to Line Item # 10600-21906 in the General Fund. Rep.
Ferland’s motion was approved on §-1 roll call vote with three absences, and one
vacancy. (8) Yes: Converse, Cloutier, Donovan, Ferland, Jillette, Houde-Qmmby,
Phinizy, and Rodeschin. (1) No: Franklln

Rep. Franklin moved that any money remaining form the $49,000 appropriated for
two replacement boilers be returned to the Emergency Fund Rep. Converse
recorded the motions. Motion was approved by a unanimous voice vote.

Delegation then turned to the election of officers for 2004-2006.

For chair, Rep. Ferland nominated Rep. Clountier seconded by Rep. Donovan.
Rep. Converse nominated Rep. Franklin there were no seconds. Rep. Ferland
moved, Rep. Donovan seconded a motion to close nominations. Motion was
approved unanimously by voice vote and Rep. Cloutier was elected chair.
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For Vice Chair: Rep. Phinizy nominated Rep. Converse seconded by Rep. Donovan.
Rep. Converse nominated. Rep. Franklin seconded by Rep Cloutier Rep. Converse
was elected by a 6-3 secret ballot vote.

For Clerk Rep. Rodeschkin nominated Rep. Jillette for clerk, which was seconded by
Rep. Converse. Motion approved unanimously by voice vote.

Executive Finance Committee (EXC) Chair Rep. Donovan moved Rep. Cloutier
seconded nominee of Rep. Ferland as EFC Chair. Motion approved unanimously
by voice.

- Executive Finance Vice Chair (EFVC): Rep. Rodeschin moved, Rep. Ferland

seconded a motion to nominate Tom Donovan as EFC Vice Chajr. Motion
approved unanimously by voice vote.

Then Rep. Ferland nomipated Reps. Houde-Quimby, Irish, Prichard, and Converse
te be members of the EFC. Rep. Donovan seconded the motion. Discussion: Rep.
Houde-Quimby said she definitely wants to serve on the EFC and added that Rep.
Prichard would like o serve. Rep. Rodeschin said she was willing to serve on the
EFC. Motion was approved unanimously by voice vote.

| Rep. Phinizy turned over the preceding of the meeting to the new Chair Rep. Cloutier.
Who then turned over duties of Clerk to Rep. Jillette.

Discussion of committee assignments: Who shall be appointed, how appointed, ete.
Committees to be appointed to are: Sullivan County Nursing Home Resident Trust Fund,
which Donovan volunteered for; County Cooperative Extension; and the Solid Waste
Committee, ‘

0Old Business: None
New Business: None

Phinizy moved to adjourn. Rep. Donovan seconded to adjourn the regular meeting
so the new delegation orientation conld proceed.

New Delegation Orientation:

Comm. Clarke will introduce Departiment heads and elected official will then discuss
County Government. Which will be followed by a Iuncheon at the Ahemn Building
located in Unity at the Unity Complex:

The following county Department Heads / Elected Officials were present:
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Sheriff Prozzo gave out guarterly reports, annual reperts and indicated he has & small
office employing 12 people and invited new delegates to visit the office.

Jan Heighes with Sullivan County Censetvation District described programs offered to
the county, tree sales each year. Largely funded by county and sales. Meet third
Thursday of the month- (Advisory Board).

Seth Wilner Cooperative Extension discussed what Cooperative Extension does Advisory
Committee meets second Monday of each month will be hiring a forester.

Sharon describes handouts in newly elected delegate paciages.

- Meeting Adjourned 11:33 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,
R. skt

Rép. John R. Cloutier

Clerk

JCNg
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Sullivan County Delegation

Type of meeting: Sullivan County Full Delegation

Date/Time: Jamuary 28, 2005 /10:00 A.M. '

Place: -Newport Remington Woodhu]l County Complex
Conference Room

Members Present: Representatives Jay Phinizy, John Cloutier, Peter Franklin, Beverly
Rodeschin, Larry Converse, Tom Donovan, Charlotte Houde-Quimby, Christopher Irish,
Arthor Jillette Jr., and Stephen Priichard _ '

_ Members Absent: Brenda Ferland

Commissioners Present: Don Clatk, Ben Neison, and Ethel Jarvis

Other Elected Officials and County Employees Present Ed Gil de Rubio, Dodi
Violette, Marc Hathaway, and John Allard

Called to Order at 10:00 by the Chair, Rep. Cloutier

Rep. Phinizy moved and Rep. Donovan seconded, to adopt the minmtes of the
September 272004 and December 8 2004 meetings. Motmn approved unanimously
by voice vote,

Executive Finance Commitfee Report —Report given by Rep. Donovan, as Rep. Ferland
had to leave afier the Execntive Finance Committee Meeting. Rep. Donavan discussed
the new financial summary report and it’s potential for providing us with more complete
information, He gave a general review of the various line items to help Delegation
members make sense of the new format and information provided there He noted that the
nursing line ttem for contract mrses would be reduced, as the county will be hiring
regular staff in place of Agency Nurses. .

Rep. Franklin asked four queshons
* 1. Whereis the $220K reserve amount in this budget report? Iv[r Gil de Rubio
indicated that the item is in the treasurer’s balance, has beén placed in a CD. It is
not part of this summary report.

2. Ifthis is the entire budget report why is the $220K not a part of this report? M.
Gil de Rubio replied that the $220K. is not part of this budget — it is in the Lake
Sunepee Banlk,

. 3. Can the County Commissioners spend the $220K. this year? M. Gil de Rubm
replied that no, the Commissioners could not spend these funds. However, the
Delegafion can order the money to be spent a certain way.

4, Is this different than what you told us a few months ago — that the Delegatzon

-cannot spend these fimds this year? Mr. Gil de Rubio claimed that he did not say
that, but rather that the Delegation might be guilty of & misdemeanor if they spent

January 28, 2005 Full Delegation Mesting Minutes 1
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the money this year. At the last Delegation meeting the DRA was phoned and
they said the Delegation could take the funds out of the CD and spend them.

M. Converse asked why the per diem nurse budget was allowed to be overspent by
$500K when other mursing service budgets had positive balances? Mr. Gil de Rubio said
that this was a mistake, and should not have happened that way. Mr. Allard the new
administrator is shutting that door.

Ms. Rodeschin — Asked if the CD had to be cashed in with a penalty. Was told that the
CD will be due in Janmary 2005. Yes there probably would be a penalty for early
withdrawal. There was further discussion regarding the current status of the CD. Mr. Gl

. deRubio indicated that he planned to include the $220K in next year’s budget proposal

for whétever purpose the Delegation wished to dispose of it.

There was a motion by Rep. Phinizy, seconded by Rep. Rodeschin that the CD be
reinvested for a period not longer than 6 months. Motion passed by voice vote.

Rep. Franklin asked about Auditor’s Report. He questioned how the projected figure for

the projected surplus was derived. Mr. Gil de Rubio indicated that the anditors report was
for previous fiscal year. The figures in current report are estimates. The final figures will
come out in the next audit. Will be carried in fund balance (According to Doty)

Rep. Rodeschin — explained how state had to estimate meneys for state aid and often their
projections were over and under,

Rep. Phinizy — explained how it’s important to watch the budget to avoid carrying too

much in certain budget categories. — Need to pare down line items.

Mr. Clark and Mr. Nelson indicated that the surplus is large due to the fact that the State
is making late payments for moriey owed in the past. If there is a surplus of recelpts, it
does not change the amounts authorized for expendltuzes A surplus of receipts is not a

"bad thmg

Rep. Donovan moved and Rep Houde -Qmmby seconded to accept the ﬁnance
report. Report accepted by voice vote.

Rep Cloutier apologzed for not havmg the Pledge of Alleg1auce at the beginning of the
session. Commissioner Jarvis led a belated Pledge of Allegiance.

Rep. Clontier introduced the County Attorney, Mark Hathaway to speak to the
Delegation. Attorney Hathaway graciously offered to defer his time to allow Ms. ng
and Ms. Stamaticus to speak first. _

 Rep. Cloutier then mtxoduced Sharon King, Reglstrar of Deeds and Carol Stamaticus,
former member of the County Delegation who have an issue they wish to discuss with the

Delegation. Rep. Cloutier apologized to Ms. King for making her come in to speak with
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the Delegation on her leave day. Ms. King wishes to discuss the implications of Ms.
Stamaticns' letter regarding Social Security numbers appearing on deeds. She gave a brief
overview of the funictions of the Registry of Deeds. Her office operates a deed recording
system that provides deed copies at her office or over the Internet'to those maintaining an
account. People can examine deeds but not copy them over the Internet uniess they have
an account. Her work is to record land records. She deferred further discussion to Jet Ms.
Stamaticus present the issue heing discussed.

Ms. Stamaticus explained her interest in the area of privacy. She had previously sent a
letter with back-up information to all members of the County Delegation. Her inferest is
the protection of privacy and the issue of identity theft. She recently became aware that
Sullivan County Registry of deeds is publishing on the Internet— docurnents that contain

" peoples Social Security Numbers. She raised the guestion abott the legal right of the

county to reveal such information. She made a point that SS Numbers are private
information as seen by case law. She noted that posting on the Internet is her issue here.
She feels that private information like Social Seourity numbers should be removed. She
feels that the website should be shut down until this is done. As an alternative, she
suggests that a charge be made fo access such data as a way to reduce fishing expeditions.
M. Phinizy — suggested that a user fee would compromise the need for free access to
documents. Mr. Trish — thinks that the risk for identitytheft is largely illusionary. Feels
that a system to opt out at the request of an. individual.

Sharon King — the banks and the IRS can attach S8 numbers to documents. The SS#is a
vital piece of datz — but is not kept on any index held by the Registry. Attempting to
redact the information would be an enormous task that would affect the integrity of data.
M. Irish — identity theft is easy to de now. The Registry data would be a very smail
poriion. -

Rep. Phinizy — Could all people looking at the data be identified? Answer — Some but not
all at the prescnt ﬁme

There was a discussion of a bill by Rep. Kirk to provide more privacy protections. Sharon
King — Registry of Deeds association are against Kirks bill.

Atty. Haﬂlaway—- Tdentity Theft is a very broad term. It is usually an act committed by a
friend or relative. The Kitk bill will raquire a level of labor by the Registrv that can slow
up or stop documents being registered. One portion of the legislation would put an
obligation on the filer to remove personal information. Hathaway opposes any redaction
of the records. He would prefer a forward solufion that wiil clean up records as they are
created in the future. Sharon King—I am now suggesting to people that they remove
private information from any documents they aftempt to register.

' There was a great deal of discussion of the ways data in the Registry could or could not

be protected. Commissioner Nelson— I don’t think we can tell the Registrar what to do.
Rep. Irish — There are problems with almost every effort to protect privacy.
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Rep. Phinizy ~ Ms King, how do you feel about the LCHIP surcharge proposal? Answer
—I am not in favor. The charges would be a burden on the public.

Rep. Cloutier— Would the ¢ounty be liable for the theft of identity?

Mr. Hathaway. — There is no current liability. The legislation would be problematic in
that it would create liability for a public entity.

Mr. Converse— could the Delegation shut down the website?

Mr. Hathaway- Do not believe you can today. But in the fuiure could affect the budget.

M. Gil de Rubio was directed to report back to the Delegation regarding the County’s
insurance liability protection coverage for data published on the website.

10'minute break — Rep. Trish had to leave due to pressing business.

Comnty Manager Report

Mr. Gil de Rubio infroduced John Allard — interim administrator provided by Genesis
Healthcare. Genesis will submit a game plan for the next 11 months. Rep. Donovan—if
there is to be a report coming out — are you at liberty to tell us of some of your
recommendations?

Mr. Allard —the recommendations will be an amalgamation of suggesticns:. Best to wait
for the final report.

Rep. Phinizy-Why do we have to have another report now, when we have had two recent
reports by the state and Genesis. We did & plan for action and the state has approved our
corrective actions. The Genesis report was two years ago. Today they have me on staff
full time to validate the findings and recommendations. Why this additional study now?

M. Gil de Rubio. — Our concern was where we were going to go over the next 5 years.

~ Rep. Donovan — How do-you look at your staffing plans?

Mr. Allard - To develop a skilled unit to work with Medicare clients.

M. Donovan — How will you listen to residents?

Mr, Allard —'We are trying to get a systein in place to improve communication between
residents and staff, : ' -

M. Donovan — Suggest that you involve families more in the conununication process.
M. Franklin — I am curious zbout the direction of the nursing home.

Mr. Allard — We must make the institution fiscally viable.

M. Franklin - Is this moving towards privatization? |
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Mr, Allard ~ I am unaware of any discussion in this area.

Ms. Rodeschin. — Do we pay for liability insurance? Mr. Gil de Rubic. — Yes
Do we pay Genesis twice for management? Mz, Gil de Rubio — We are paying for other
administrative skills beyond those possessed by the mferim administrator,

Mr. Gil de Rubio - Medicaid is going to change. We expect 4o get us in the black.

M. Phinizy — Are the management fees being rolled over to pay for Genesis? [ see §16K
per month paying Genesis. We are now paying $200K. over for a management fee.
‘Where is it coming from? Mr. Gil de Rubio —We will be figuring our where the money
 will be coming from the current budget and will let you know.

Mr. Franklin — I find the ways you are putting off giving answers to produce a lack of
trust in the members of the Delegation.

Mt. Allard — We are plowing new ground here. I don’t think we will have answers as fast
as you wish.

M. Franklin — Question about the dollar amounts of the managerial fees being charged
under the contract,

Mt. Allard — managing a nursing- home is a very complex operation—Iam a geﬁéra]ist
who uses the skills of other people to get the job done. We place persons where they can
bring in the greatest retums to the organization.

M. Donovan — I think our responsibility is to take care of the most vulnerable people. [
am worried that there is a push to shop around for those who can bring in the most 33 to
the mstztuhon

Mrs. Rodeschin — What are the incentive fees?
M. Gil de Rubio — We will be ‘giving a fee for profit sharing,
Mz. Clark — If we increase the population we would pay for the management fee.

Mr. Phinizy —Is there an auto-renew clzuse in the contract? We need to notify you in
September or 90 days? .

Mr. Hatheway — We can void the contract with a 90-day notice period.

Mr. Phinizy — The commissioners can move funds around as they wish?

The Delegation has the authority to restrict the fransfer of money between funds.
We are not sure of the total authority of the commissioners to transfer money.
‘There is law proposed to expand the authority of the commissioners to expend funds
across budget lines more easily than thought previously.
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M. Hathaway — My recommendation is that any multi-year contract to be approved by
the Delegation: There are yet unanswered guestions. I feel it is vital this is done.

Mr. Frankiin— I have learned that one criterion for judging the success of Genesis is their

' ability to earn their contract fee. I would like to recommend that the county administrator

give frequent reports on where and how the savings will be made.

M. Clark — Three objectives. Maintain quality of care. Achieve savings, Increase # of
clients.

_ M. De Rubio ~ We put this contract together at the last minute. We had to move quickly.

We had to get it done.
Rep. Prichard — Are we microménage or overseeing?
Rep. Rodeschin — I think we should move along with the agenda.

Mr. Hathaway - The Linehan case — The Commissioners have far more authority than we
previously realized. The convention — can appropriate money and responsible for
oversight of the budget. Can require reports on a more frequent basis. Can require
authority to transfer ﬁmds from line item fo line item. .

Mr. Phinizy — The contract the Commissioners drew up was a multl—year contract m my
opinion. :

Mr. Bathaway —the 90-day pull out protects us.

M. Frarklin — Do the County Commlsszoners have the right to create anew line item in
the budget?

Mr. Hathaway — gave examples of ways the county could change line items.
Commissioner Clark — offered comments about the budget process.
Rep. Rodeschin —wants to continue with aéenda

Rep. Phinizy asked a Question about $6.00 per month increase for nursing homes
residents’ bill proposal. Commissioners present were neutral or in favor.of the proposal.
Motion to adjourn - Phinizy moved, Prichard seconded and Delegation ad]ourned at
1:31 PM

Respectfull %ubmltted o
Arthur Jillette, CIW /%/
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Sullivan County NH
FY 06 Proposed Bndget Public Hearing — June 16%, 2005
Tiwe: 7PM
Place: Newport - Sugar River Valley Regional Technical Center — Lou Thompson
Commumity Room
Public Hearing Minutes

PREEMPT: This public hearing was aired live and taped by NCTV — Newport Cable. A
copy of the tape may be borrowed from the Connty Commissioners Office, located at 14

- Main Street, Newport New Hampshire.

- ATTENDEES: Commissioners Donald 8. Clarke, Bennie C. Nelson and Fithel J arvis;

" County Manager Ed Gil de Ruibio; Sheriff Michagl Prozzo; Comnty Attorney Hathaway;
State-County Delegates present: Rep John Cloutier, Larry Converse, Arthur Jillette Jr,
Brenda Ferland, Jay Phinizy, Beverly Rodeschin, Tom Donovan, Charlotte Houde-
Quimby, Stephen Prichard, and Peter Franklin. Other county emplovees: Sharon
Johnson-Callom, Dodi Viclette, Janice Bryk. There were other public attendees.

- Commissioner Clarke provided opening remarks. Commissioner Clarke briefed over
Commissioners’ Budget Goals:

Stabilize Property Taxes

In-depth Study of the Criminal Justice System

Study of Land Manager / Buildings

Examine New Revenue Sources / Services

Continue Grant Programs

Invest in the County luﬁ‘astructure

SRR

County Manager provided comparison between proposed FY 06 budget and FY 03
budget. He discnssed difference and percentage of i mcrease Ite:mzatxon ofincreases -
prcmded

- County Managcr dlscussed a:mount to be reised by taxes.

County Manager dasoussed four-year synop51s of property taxes.
County Manager disenssed Revenues, then Expenditures.

Countjr Manager provided PowerPoint presentation.

- (Copies of the preszntaiion handouts are on file at fke C‘ommis.s'ioners Office)

Floor was opened to Questmns and Answers, which mcluded
¢ Representatives asked if concerns broached at a previous Delegation meemng
from a res1dent’s daughter were addressei Com.tmsszoners confirmed yes.
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» Rep. Rodeschin requested them to follow up with Peter Goodwin, NH State
Courts Burean, for funding on any capital improvement items for the 7 floor
in the Newport Complex. She asked guestions regarding central purchasing, a
nursing home item in budget. She discussed housing for female population in
Goffstown. '

s Rep. Donovan spoke.

Rep. Frankiin spoke.

Ann Cuadrado and her sister spoke regardmg their concern for the decrease of
nurses, but he increase in Medicaid beds. They are concened about the
elimination of agency nurses.

» Rep. Houde-Quimby asked questions about the Genesis contract.
Commissioner Clarke noted Genesis has provided iraining for better
efficiency, in order to receive and increase of revenue. County Manager
spoke briefly.

¢ Xevin Cooney, Community Alliance, noted that the committees for county,

* such as buildings and lands should be made public. ‘

s Rep. Franklin asked questions regarding the Genesis budget in the nursing
home. _ '

» Rep. Rodeschin spoke briefly.

» Rep. Donovan spoke again, about quality care issnes. He spoke about
concerns of the elimination of the Unit Aid positions.

* Carla Sldnder, Adult Day Care Program, spoke briefly about working with

several County Nursing home employees. They will be doing field 1:r1ps with

the Sulliven County Resident Activities Department.

Rep. Rodeschin spoke again. - '

Sheriff Prozzo spoke briefly. :

Attorney Mark Hathaway spoke briefly. .

Rep. Rodeschin asked questions about the workload the County Attorney took

on with the State case he processed last year. Attorney noted they worked

double shifts, tremendous burden on staff, but that they did not bill the County
for work at state level. They continue to put'in long hous.

* Rep. Ferland spoke regarding the EFC meetings. :

. a e @

. Rep. Ferland distributed a report she created from the Executive Finance Committee
meetings, and what they were suggeshng to the full Delegation. ‘

8:52 pm. The pablic hearmg ad_] ourned.

Respectfully submitted,

Arthur Jillette, Clerk
- Bullivan County-State Delegation

AlJ/sj~c.

June 16°2005 DRAFT Public Hearing Minutes : 2
"  Pageay



flki

Sullivan County Annual Convention
June 28, 2005

Place: Claremont, New Hampshire
Sugar River Valley Regional Technical Center
(4ired Live and Taped)

DRAFT Meeting Minutes
DELEGATION ATTENDEES: John Cloutier— Chair, Larry Converse — Vice Chair, Arthur

Jillefte Jr.— Clerk, Brenda Ferland — Executive Finance Committee (EFC) Chair, Tom
Donovan — EFC Vice Chair, Charlotte Houde-Quimby — EFC, Christopher Irish— EFC,

-. Stephen G. Prichard — EFC, Peter Franklin, Harry 8. Gale Jr., Joe Osgood, James Phinizy

and Beverly Rodeschin.

COUNTY ELECTED OFFICIALS, DEPARTMENT HEADS AND OTHER EMPLOYEES!
Commissioners Donald 8. Clarke— Chair, Bennie C. Nelson — Vice Chair, Ethel Jarvis—
Clerk; County Manager — Bd Gil de Rubio; Nursing Home Administrator — Courtney
Marshall; DOC Superintendent ~ Scott Hegar; Facilities & Operations Director— Greg
Chanis; Human Services Coordinator — Sherrie Curtis; Conservation District Manager —
Janice Heighes; Sullivan County UNH Cooperative Extension Co Office Manager — Seth
‘Wilner; County Attorney — Marc Hathaway; County Treasurer — Mark Pifkin; High
Sheriff— Michael Prozzo; Registrar of Deeds — Sharron King; DOC Secretary — Lori
Blalce; Accounts Payable/Account Clerk I—Dodi Violette; Commissioners Office
Administrative Assistant - Sharon Johnson-Callum.

Other Public Attendees:

9:03 Rep John Cloutier, Chairman, called the meeting o order.
Pledge to flag was led by County Commissioner Don: Clarke.

Rep. Cloutier had all the delegation members introduce themselves. He then had the
County Commissioners and department heads introduce themselves.

Commissioner Clarke then gave a report for the Commissioners, He started out by
delivering news regarding the Pro-Share Funds that the County was expecting to receive
from the State of NH. , in the amount of $1,780,171. We got a notice from the state
Dept. of Health and Human Services, that they expected a retarn of $1,200,000, plus
additional funds for over billings etc., leaving a Pro-Share balance to the County of about
$8.000. The Commissioner’s budget was built on the assumption that we would be
receiving the full amount of this Pro-Share money. The Commissioners and the executive
cormmittee met yesterday. They decided to recommend that the budget be set at the same
amount ag raised last year. This will raise the requested budget to $9,433,119. Any
additional shortfall would be taken from Capital Improvement sections of the budget.
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It is the mtention of the County Commissioners to fight this tooth and nail. We feel that
this request is a flagrant violation of the agreements made wher the law was passed last
year. There are also disagresments about billing. He read an email from Senator Odell
confirming that the “bed tax™ was intended entirely for the counties. He referred to the
action of the DHSS action to be a “ flagrant sucker punch”. He will be tallking with the
NH Association of Counties.

Rep Phinzey “What was the rationale for this request?” Comm. Clarke: Tt appears that
HHS feels we got a windfall we did not deserve.

Rep Gale: What will be our redress over this? Comm. Clarke: T am not sure if the redress

- will be legal or legislative. I recommend we put these monies aside in a fund until their

final destination: is figured out.

Rep. Franklin addressed a number of questions to Comm. Clarke. He questioned the
dates on the spreadsheet and why the delegates were not notified earlier. County
Manager Ed Gil de Rubio gave a listing of the time lines for receipt of the Pro-Share
information. Rep. Franklin responded that it appeared that the County Manager had prior
knowledge of the sttuation almost a week ago and was remiss in Jetting the
Commissioners and the Delegation lmow ebout it unti] today. Rep. Franklin questioned
the rightness in changing the significant amount of the budget at this late date. Mr. Gil de
Rubio respunded that it might have been a good move by the finance committee members
in the room to give him a heads up on this proposed action. Rep Franklin responded that
this information was not brought up to the Legislative Finance Committee and that he
still feels that Mr. Gil de Rubio was remiss in not letting the Dejegation and the
Commissioners know about it earlier. Rep. Prichard spoke in support of the County staff
and their efforts to put together a budget, and that he does not feel that they were trying to
wifthhold information. Rep. Gale also spoke along the same lines.

Rep Chris Irish: Proposed that the Convention take a straw poll to see if we support the
withholding of the fimds mmtil NI-I State HHS has a strong legal case for it being sent to
them.

He made the following motion, following discussion and voted upon word change

amendments:

o That the Delegation vote to sapport and instrnct the Commissioners to deposit
the full Pro-Share Check fo the bank account and encourage the other counties
to do the same. Secomded by Rep. Prichard. Discussion: Rep. Donovan: The
enemy is not in this room. We have a HHS Conmmissioner that malkes up unilateral
tules that drastically change how business is conducted for counties and its’ people.
The enemy is in. Concord. Rep. Prichard recommended that the other Counties be
enconraged to follow the suit of Sullivan County, and withhold their Pro-Share Fimds

-as well. Rep. Rodeschin: As a member of the fiscal comumittes, I was not aware that
this was happening. Had I been aware, I would bave been in contact with the County
Commissioners, and my Division Chairman. Rep. Franklin is correct in that the
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County officials have known about this for a week anc none of you have contacted
me in advance! Roll Call on motion: Ferland Y, Donovan Y, Quimby Y,
Prichard Y, Irish Y, Jillette Y, Converse Y, Rodeschin AB, Phinzy ¥, Gale Y,
Osgood Y, Franklin Y, Cloutier Y. (12Y, 1 AB)

Rep. Rodeschin: I have a meeting next Friday over at the NH State HFIS in Concord and
1 would like the County office to supply me with complete written information to take
with me. '

Rep. Phinzey moved:
o the Sullivan County Delegation ask the Governor to Jook into the management of
the Department of Health and Human Services and that this delegation ask for
. the resignation of the Commissioner of Health and Homan Services. Seconded
by Rep. Houde-Quimby. Vete: Ferland Y, Donovan Y, Quimby Y, Prichard ¥,
Irish N, Jillette Y, Converse Y, Rodeschin N, Phinzy ¥; Gale N, Osgood N,
Franklin Y, Cloutier Y. (10Y, 3N)

Following discussion it was understood that the Pro-Share funds would be held in an
escrow accoundt.

Mark Pitkin, County Treasurer, and Mark Hathaway, County Attorney, arrived and were
introduced,

Rep. Franklin requested further details regarding the “errors in billing request™ from NH
State DHHS. Comm. Clarke explained that these were requests to balance out errors m
billing for a variety of patients over the years 2003 and 2004. Rep. Franklin asked if

_ these errors are made in other counties, and was assured that the other counties get

similar bill corrections.
Rep. Irish asked that the meeting move forward to the business of the day.

Mz, Gil de Rubio thanked the Executive Finance Committee for six months of hard work
under the leadership of Rep. Ferland.

Members of the public were offered an opportunity to speak. None appeared to
comment. )

Rep Ferland thanked the Executive Finance Committee for six months of hard work.

There are 27 Payrolls this fiscal year. This costs about $300,000. Other budget increases
are dne to the following main factors. Health insnrance 19% increase, Dental insurance
9% increase, Retirement 6.8% increase. Also about 3% increase for salaries. We will
also need to vote on mileage rates.

She then pf&santed fhe budget in accordance with the attached budget sheets.
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Fund 23- Register of Deeds.

Rep Pranklin: Were services fransferred from the Registry of Deeds? Answer: Payroll
accounting was transferred :

Fund -24 Grants

Fund 10~ General Fund

Rep. Rodeschin asked about the County Forester. She asked why UNH is not picking up
the cost of the County Forester? Mr. Wilner responded that they are only funding
$25,000 of the Forester salary in the future. Rep Rodeschin noted that she objects that
TUNH is dropping the full support of the County Forester. Tt was noted that the budget
could be amended by the Delegation.

Rep. Rodeschin: Do the HCBC funds reflect the increases in the state bndget? Answer:
Yes. It was noted that these questions should wait tilt the end of this budget section

-. presentation.

Questions:

Rep. Phinizy: Are the nurses at the DOC transferred back and forth from the Nursing
Home? Answer; No they are full time. One half time murse added.

Rep. Osgood — Under the Sheriffs Dept. asked for clarification. Sheriff: Have 6 FT
people. 7 vehicles.

Rep. Osgood: What about the courthouse? Answer: $118,169. Do the grantees give a
report at the end of the year? Answer: Yes. Next year would appreciate ar abbreviated
report from each grantee next year.

Rep. Franklin: Can you break line two into the various sub-categories?

Of the $ 9,433,119.00 will be raised from taxes. What are the capital finds? Itis the
capital reserve fund we set aside. $223,500. Rep Franklin feels it is not a legal fund.
What is the surplus? That is the money told to us by the auditors is surpius. The figure is
about $1,000,000. Rep. Franklin does not see that the figures balance out. Mr. Gil de
Rubio: The number should $10,375,614, ‘Rep. Pranklin: I donot feel I got a detailed
report as I requested. Rep Franklin: asked questions about retirement amounts. The
County Commissioners set a salary figure of $100,000. Retirement is the same as other
employees. Rep Franklin: Is there a policy on the use and maintenance of County
Vehicles? Is the county vehicle for personal or official use? Answer: Official.

Rep. Franklin: Were any emergency funds spent this year? Gil de Rubio: Paid for new
fornaces. Rep. Pranklin: Question about half time position becoming full time.

Rep Franklin: On page 4 PNMI is that for children only? Answer: Yes. Is that all the
expense on the Woodhull budget? Answer; Only operating budget. Rep Franklin: What
about transfer from operations to human resources? Why the transfer from one fund to
the other? Mr. Gil de Rubio we are doing the transfer on the advice of anditors as these
services are conducted county wide. Rep Phinizy why did these transfers not come
before us in the past? They were fransfers in the same budget class in the past. Rep
Rodeschin: You are creating a new fund at the direction of the anditors? Answer: Yes.
Are you really creating a slush find? Answer: No. Rep. Franklin I asked for a report of
all intra and within bodget transfers for the current budget year and did not receive that.

Chair.called a five-minute breat,
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Rep Irish: I feel that Rep. Ferland should be allowed to continue to read off the budget as
she has presented it to us. After she is finished, I am going to move that the bottom
line be aceepted. And we then have discussion and possible amendments to this
bottom Iine. We have no right to change the line items of the budget. I move that we
limit debate to the bottom line of this budget and we move forward to the reading of
this budget. Rep. Prichard and Gale: X second this motion.

Rep Phinizy — are we voting on thres motions or one. Rep. Converse: If we vote on the
bottom line then the manager can move funds around as he pleases. I would vote no on
this motion. Rep. Irish: The only thing we have a tight to vote on is the bottom line!
Rep. Rodeschin: 'We have the right to look at and amend the line item of this budget and
arrive at a bottom line which we then vote upon. Rep. Franklin: I believe that Rep. Irish

.- is completely mistaken about the role of the County Convention, Where does RSA 24

1imit the right of the County Convention? He cited Daniels v. Hansen where the court
states that the county convention sets all aspects of the budget. Rep Ferland: Can we get
to the motion that will allow me to finish this budget presentation?

Rep Clontier: What is the motion?

Rep. Jillette: To allow Rep Ferland to complete the budget presentanon without
interruption. Vote: Ferland Y, Donovan Y, Quimby Y, Prichard Y, Irish Y, Jillette
Y, Converse Y, Rodeschin Y, Phinzy Y, Gale Y, Osgood Y, Franklin N, Cloutier V.

(12Y, IN)

Rep. Gale — Can the county attorney tell us if we can vote on line items in the budget or
only the bottom line?

Rep Ferland continues:

Fund 30. (See written budget) $1,243,474 iotal

Fund 40 (Nursing Home) {See Written budget) $11,23%,090.

Fund 42 Capital Improvements (See Written Bndgst) 23,126,020

Rep Trish Moved to accept 2 FY 06 budget of $24,210,025 of which 39,433,119 is
raised by property tax. Rep Gale seconded. Rep. Irish moved to allow a debate only
on the bottom line. Rep Gale: Repeated his question about the bottom line vs. line items.
The county attorney said the convention had the authority to consider line items as they
built the budget. Rep. Rodeschin: We are the legislative body to approve or disapprove of
this budget. Rep. Phinzey: I feel that there are individual items in the budget I must get
explained or else I will feel constrained to have them removed from the budget. There
was further general discussion of the process of voting on the budget. Rep. Prichard gave
the opinion that we should postpone the vote. Rep. Ferland spoke in favor of moving to 2
vote or the budget. Rep. Donovan: I feel we have a right o ask questions, and we should
not vote to limit debate.

Rep. Franklin: Ihave attempted to get answers from the county in the past and have not
received them. Rep. Frish: 1 feel that the chair needs to male a ruling on how we shall
move forward with this motion. If people want to say negative things about County -
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employees, they should be ruled out of order. Rep. Cloutier: Irule that we move forward
with this motion with the understanding that the bottom line of the budget may be
amended during the debate. If concerns are raised about County employees, then I will
give them a chance fo respond. Rep. Ferland I would propose we agree to keep questions
to 15 minutes to explain budget line items. Rep. Cloutier— we will move forward with
that understanding,

Rep. Phinzy asked for an explanation of the marketing budget iterns. Rep. Ferland:
There are two full time people. One will seek clients at hospitals etc. The other person
will evaluate potential clients. These positions are both transfers from other departments.
Rep Franklin: Can we have a copy of the separate report about fund transfers? Answer:
‘You have been sent muliiple copies of this report. Rep. Franklin: At best the report

- cannot be understood. Are the intergovernmenta] totals for fund 30 to be raised by taxes?
© Rep Phinzy: This is 2 bookkeeping transfer? YES. Rep Converse: Do we budget for Per

Diem Nurses. Mr. Gil de Rubio: There is $200K. in the budget for Per Diem nurses.

Rep. Phinzey: How many nutses are on the staff? Do we really have all employed? Mr.
Courtney Marshali: We have 3 or 4 unfilled positions. Rep. Rodeschin: How many beds
are being put aside for respite care? Is Patty involved? Yes. Rep. Donovamn: we are
describing a capability to take in clients. Comm. Jarvis: The June 24 report says we have
2.70 vacant RNs, LPN 0.7 vacant, LNA’s 2.40 vacant, 9.2 vacant LNA frainees.

Rep Rodeschin moved to:
o Reduce the delegation budget reduced by $1,40C to allow only one person te go
for training. Amendment was defeated by voice vote,

Rep Donovan moved to:

o Reduce the budget by $200.000, the amount of the Genesis contract for the next
year. The actual figure leaves in funds for budget adjustments and training to
keep the home operating as an independent entity. Representative Prichard spoke
that he felt this move was premature. I feel that this move will undermine the whole
budget process. Rep. Irish: I feel we need to give this process more time, and then
decide at a later date if we want to “fire” them. Rep. Rodeschin: I am in favor of
keeping the coniract for a year. In case yon forget, we had 2 deficit caused by the
County Nursing Home for the two years prior to Genesis coming here. Ionly
received one call about the changes at the Nursing Home, and [ hope I took care of
her concern. Rep. Donovan you said we lost 10 employees. I believe that many of
them had an opporturity for further education. I would appreciate your further
explanation regarding these employees. Rep. Donovan: The additional 6 months of
the contract will complete a year. I feel we have exiremely well qualified people
working at the Home, If the only issue is Medicaid and money enshancement I think:
we have the people to do that. Rep. Converse: I note that there has been 24 beds
unfilled this past year. If you look around the home you will see problems. Rep.
Donovan: I don’t feel we need to extend the contract beyond the next six months.

‘Rep. Gale: I am against this amendment. I feel that this is 2 good way to do business.
I feel Genesis is entitled to a reasonable time to show they can solve problems. Rep.
Osgood: Genesis is attempting to change bad habits. I am against this motion. Rep.
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Houde-Quimby: Genesis tock this contract to show how they could perform in other
County Homes. We still have 10 agency shifis per week. I support Tom’s motion
becanse I think he is on the right track. Rep. Phinzey: I feel that with the funds we
pay the manager I feel that I support Tom's motion. Rep Donovan: Yes the ten aides
1aid off were offered the training, but many of them are age 60 or older and could not
complete the training. I think we owed these people more than that, Rep. Irish: I feel
that these people will do us good. I don’t see the downside.

Question Calied.

Donavan moves to:

o Reduoce the budget 10 $24,930,025 in order to delete the contract with Genesis by
December 30", This inclndes leaving in the budget $10,000 for the Nursing
Home Administrator and $10,000 for training and other activities. Vote:
Ferland N, Donovan Y, Quimby Y, Prichard N, Irish N, Jillette Y, Converse Y,
Rodeschin N, Phinzy Y, Gale N, Osgood N, Franklin Y, Cloutier Y. (7Y, 6N)

M. Gil de Rubio: Iam not in any condition to propose an alternafive budget today.
Some discussion about possible alternative meeting date.

Rep. Boude-Quimby proposed a reconsideration of the vote.

M. Gil de Rubio: I-will call Genesis tomorrow and tell Genesis to hit the road. Rep.
Ferland: They will walk in 90 Days. Comm. Clarke: I do not fes] this gives Genesis a
fair shake. Rep Rodeschin — at the public hearing they said they would include the
delegation in the negotiations with Genesis. Rep. Franklin: a one-year trial is sufficient.
Rep. Gale: The cmrent contract goes until Dec. 30 and have you made a prior
arrangement with Genesis to conmme unti! June 30%? Comm. Clarke: They have
offered to continue until June 30%. So our new contract would be coexistent with our
fiscal year. Rep. Prichard: We cannot do this to these people. We are undermining their
anthority. Rep. Irish: This move will have a tax 1mp act. Rep Gale: argued to allow the
contract to work out through next June.

o Question Call in favor by voice vote.

‘c  Question of Reconsideration moved to vote. Vote: Ferland Y, Donovan N,

Quimby Y, Prichard Y, Irish Y, Jillette Y, Converse N, Rodeschin Y, Phinzy N,
‘Gale Y, Osgood Y, Franklin N, Cloutier Y. (9Y, 4N). Reconsideration Passed.

o Vote on Donovan’s motion. Vote: Ferland N, Donsvan Y, Quimby N, Prichard
N, Irish N, Jillette N, Converse Y, Rodeschin N, Phinzy Y, Gale N, Osgood N,
¥ranklin Y, Clountier N. (4Y, 9N)

o Rep. Gale: Attempted to form a motion that would require the commissioners to
come back to the delegation before signing a new contract. Seconded by Rep.
Rodeschin. Rep. Prichard: I feel that the commissioners have the authority and

FY {6 Annual Convention June 28 2005.doc 7
DRAFT

Page 54




responsibility to make a new contract on their own volition. We should be asking
them to include the delegation in any contract negotiations with Genesis. Mr. Gil de
Rubio: The delegation WILL BE INVITED to be part of the negotiation process.
Gale and Rodeschin withdrew their motion.

o Rep. Osgood seconded by Rep. Irish to call the question on the original budget
vote. Roll Call Vote: Ferland Y, Donovan Y, Quimby Y, Prichard N, Irish ¥,
Jillette Y, Converse Y, Rodeschin Y, Phinzy N, Gale Y, Osgood Y, Franklin N,
Cloutier Y. (10Y, 3N)

o Budget Vote: Budget bottom line of $24,210,025 and to raise § 9,433,119 jn
taxes for FY 06. Roll Cali Vote: Ferland Y, Donovan N, Quimby N, Prichard N,
_ Irish Y, Jillette N, Converse N, Rodeschin Y, Phinzy N, Gale Y, Osgood Y,
Franklin N, Cloutier Y. (6Y, 7N) Budget Failed.

Rep. Ferland it does not do us any good to delay. Rep. Rodeschin do weneed a
contimying resolution? Comm. Clark: on Pro-Share we may kmow the answers sooner or
later. The commissioners agreed that if the budget were raised as we set it up we would
live with it and delay Capital expenditures if we needed to live without the Pro-Share
Funds.

On the basis of that statement Rep. Prichard moved:

o For reconsideration of the previous vote. Rep. Honde-Quimby: My vote
represents lack of frust at the state level. Rep. Phinzy: I will change my vote but
I don’t believe you will meet those projected revenues. Comm. Clark: I am
hopeful we will meet the Genesis projections. Rep. Franklin: This bndget will be
better known after more information is known. Voice vote to call the guestion.
Roll call vote reconsideration of previous vote. Vote: Ferland Y, Donovan N,
Quimby Y, Prichard Y, Trish Y, Jillette Y, Converse N, Rodeschin Y, Phinzy Y,
Gale Y, Osgood Y, Franklin N, Clountier Y. (10Y, 3N) |

o Back to original Budget vote. Budget bottom Line of $24,210,025 and to raise
$9,433,119 in property taxes. Vote: FFerland Y, Donovan N, Quimby Y, Prichard
Y, Irishk Y, Jillette Y, Converse N, Rodeschin Y, Phinzy Y, Gale N, Osgood Y,
Franklin N, Clontier Y. (10Y, 3N) :

Rep. Ferland moved:

o To reconsider the previous vote. Vote: Ferland N, Donovan Y, Quimby N,
Prichard N, Yrish N, Jillette N, Converse Y, Rodeschin N, Phinzy N, Gale N,
Osgood N, Franklin Y, Cloutier N. (3Y, 10N)

Meeting then took a half hour break for lunch.

Rep. Phinzey made a motion fo:
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o Raise mileage rate to .40 cents per mile. Seconded by Rodeschin. Vote: Jillette
Y, Converse N, Rodeschin Y, Phinzy Y, Osgood Y, Franklin Y, Cloutier Y. (6Y,

1N)
Reps. Gale, Quimby and Prichard arrived.

Motion to:

o Authorize the County Commissioners to apply for, receive and expend federal
and state grants which become available during the course of the year, and also
to accept and expend money from any other governmental unit or private source
to be used for purposes for which the county may legally appropriate money.
Motion by Rep, Phinzey and Seconded by Rep. Osgood. Rep. Franklin said that

_ this should be monitored carefully. Vote: Jillette Y, Converse Y, Rodeschin Y,
Phinzy Y, Osgood Y, Franklin N, Cloutier Y. Quimby Y, Gale Y, Prichard ¥
(9Y, IN)

Rep. Phinzey moved and Rep. Franklin seconded the following motion:
o That the County Commissioners get approval of the Executive Finance
Committee before transferring funds in accordance with RSA 24:15,

Rep. Rodeschin moved and Rep. Prichard seconded the following 2mendment to the

previons vote:

o The County Convention requires that the County Commissioners obtain written
authority of the execntive Committee before transferring monies from one fund
to another fund or any appropriation or part thereof under RSA 24:15. There
was a discussion of inter and intra department transfers and the authority of the
Commissioners. Rep. Franklin points out Fund 42 that could require intrafiind
transfers, as it contains more than a million dollars in funds. Question called and
passed on & voice vote. Vote on the Rodeschin- Prichard Amendment. Vote was
8-2 in Favor. Osgood Y, Phinzey Y, Franklin N, Redeschin Y, Cloutier Y,
Converse N, Quimby Y, Prichard Y, Gale Y, Jillette Y.

o Vote on the amended motion. Vote was 8-2 in Favor. Osgood Y, Phinzey Y,
Franklin N, Rodeschin Y, Cloutier Y, Converse N, Quimby Y, Prichard Y, Gale
Y, Jillette Y.

Rep. Gale asked the Delegation to vote to hold a couple of hearings about the inequities -
in the manner in how the towns in the Counties are funded. He is concerned about the
possibility of succession of Sunapee from the County. Rep. Prichard felt that Sunapee
should fund a study fo Jook at the costs and benefits of succession. It was agreed that we
would support a couple of meetings perhaps in Newport and Claremont.

The Convention then discnssed request from the NH VT Solid Waste Project regarding

. Rep. Franklin’s behavior at the project meetings. Rep. Franklin has asserted his right to
participate in the NH District meetings, both public and private to fully participate. Their
lawyer feels that the agreement only allows him to participate in JOINT MEETINGS.
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The state districts only include town representatives. They are not asking the delegation
to take action today. They may be back to us later regarding this. Rep. Franklin spoke in
his own defense.

4:14 Rep Rodeschin moved to adjourn the meefing,

Respectfully submitted:

. . Arthur Jillette, Clerk
Sullivan County Delegation
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Town/City
Acworth

Charlestown

. -. Claremont

Comish
Croydon
Goshen
Grantham
Langdon
Lempster
Newport
Plainfield
Springfield
Sunapee
Unity
Washington

Totals

Sullivan County

County Tax Apportionment
Fiscal Year 2004

% Proportion of Tax
2.0813
6.1224
17.9001
3.4524
1.7138
1.6086
12.4864
1.1784
2.2934
9.9414
6.0972
4,1337
23.5970
2.4236
4.9903

100%

Dollar Amount of Tax

194,445
577,533
1,688,537
325,673
161,667
151,737
1,177,862
111,156
216,342
937,785
575,156
389,935
2,225,930
228,618
470,743
9,433,119
Submitted by:

Mark Pitkin
County Treasurer
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SULLIVAN COUNTY NH

DETAIL OF BONDED INDEBTEDNESS AS OF

JUNE 30, 2005

N.H. Municipal Bond Bank 5.25%

Nursing Home Renovation 1995-2005

(Please note: this page in the FY 04 County Report erroneously
reflected this amount as $570,000, when it should have reflected

$380,000)

N.H. Dept. of Environmental Services 1.188%
Sewer Project 2002-2007 '

Total Bonded Indebtedness as of 6-30-05

Principal Only
$190,000

$370,911

$5,609,911

Submitted by:
Mark Pitkin
County Treasurer
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REPORT OF TRUST AND CAPITAL RESERVE FUNDS
5 {r150.8°

Please insért the total of ALL funds here

Coost™{ of | ) —
Fown/City Of:QuLLi\/F)N G})\)‘[L/ (VM _For Year Ended: SonE &2;20@5

CERTIFICATE

This is to certify that the information contained in this report was taken from

W Z@;ﬁi rrect to the best of our knowledge and belief.
)/ Y E—

nty, Treasy .
; %ﬁd &/L&%) Signed by the Trustees of Trust Funds
County ommy;‘g 10 :
%i, oﬁ;ww_/ on this date Qg% G 2005

State/County Delegate o~

REMINDERS FOR TRUSTEES

1. INVESTMENT POLICY - RSA 31:32 reguires the trustees to adopt an investment policy and review and confirm
this policy at least annually.

2. PROFESSIONAL BANKING AND BROKERAGE ASSISTANGE - RSA 31:38-a enables you to have a
professional banking or brokerage F irm assist you in performing your trustee duties. Refer to the law for further
information.

Attributable expenses may be charged against the trust funds involved, however, piease be advised the fees can
be taken from Income only and not from principal.

3. WEB SITE - A trustee handbook can be down loaded from the web site for the Attomey General's Charitable
Trust Division. http:/fiwww.state.nh.us/nhdoj/CHARITABLE/char. htmil

4. FAIR VALUE - Fold and complete page 4 to disclose the fair value (market value) of principal only. This
information may be obtained from financial publications or from your professional banker or broker.

5. CAPITAL RESERVE FUND - Must be kept in a separate account and not intermingled with any other funds of
the municipality (RSA 35:9).

6.WHEN and WHERE TO FILE - By March 1 if filing for a calendar year and by Sepiember 1 if filing for optional
fiscal year. See addresses on page 4 of this form. If you hold funds for the school, the school business
administrator will also need a copy fo

FOR DRA USE ONLY
State of New Hampshire

Department of Revenue Administration
Municipal Finance Bureau

PO Box 487, Concord, NH 03302-0487
(603) 271-3397

- - MS-9
Page 60 Rev. 05/03
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SULLIVAN COUNTY, NEW HAMPSHIRE
Management Letter

For the Year Ended June 30, 2005
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MH&Co

MgerLanson Heata & CoMprany, pPC

CEeRTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
MANAGEMENT ADVISORS

11 Thafalgar Square « Suite 101
Nashiz, NH 03063-1974
Tel {603)882-1111 « Fax (603)882-0456
melansonheath.com

To the Board of Commissioners
Sullivan County
Newport, New Hampshire

We have audited the financial statements of Sullivan County, New Hampshire, as
of and for the year ended June 30, 2005, and have issued our report thereon dated

\ "7 July 29, 2005. As part of our audit, we made a study and evaluation of the County's
system of internal accounting control to the extent we considered necessary to
evaluate the system as required by generally accepted auditing standards. Under
these standards, the purposes of such evaluations are to establish a basis for reli-
ance on the system of internal accounting control in determining the nature, timing,
and extent of other auditing procedures that are necessary for expressing an.
opinion on the financial statements.

The management of Sullivan County, New Hampshire is responsible for establish-
ing and maintaining a system of internal accounting control. In fulfilling this respons-
ibility, estimates and judgments by them are required to assess the expected bene-
fits and related costs of control procedures. The objectives of such a system are

{o provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that assets are safeguarded
against loss from unauthorized use or disposition, and that transactions are exe-
cuted in accordance with required authorization and recorded properly to permit

the preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. )

' Because of inherent limitations in any system of internal accounting control, errors
or irregularities may still occur without being detected. Also, projection of any evalu-
ation of the system to future periods is subject to the risks that procedures may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compli-
ance with the procedures may deteriorate. |

" ‘We noted certain matters involving the internal control structure and its operation
that we consider to be reportable conditions under standards established by the
American Institute of Ceriified Public Accountants. Repoﬂabfe conditions involve

" matters coming to our attention relating to significant deficiencies in the design
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or operation of the internal confrol structure that, in our judgment, could adversely
affect the County's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data
in a manner that is consistent with the assertions of management in the financial
statements. These issues are noted as reportable conditions in the table of con-
tents and in the comment headings.

A material weakness is a reportable condition in which the design or operation of
one or more of the specific internal control structure elements does not reduce, o
a relatively low level, the risk that errors or irregularities in amounts that would be
material in relation 1o the financial statements being audited may occur and not be

-~ detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing

their assigned functions. Our consideration of the internal control structure would
not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control structure that might be
reportable conditions and, accordingly, would not necessarily disclose all reportable
conditions that are also considered to be material weaknesses as defined above.
However, we believe the reportable conditions described above are material weak-

Nnesses.

Our study and evaluation was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opin-
ion on the internai accounting control and would not necessarily disclose all weak-
nesses in the system. However, as a result of our study and evaluation, and in an
effort to be of assistance to the County, we are submitting for your consideration
comments and recommendations intended to improve operations and internal
accounting control.

After you have an opportunity to consider our findings and recommendations, we
shall be pleased to discuss them further with you. We would like to thank the
County officials and staff for the cooperation and courtesy given to our firm during
the course of the engagement.

Mebasrn, Mf@@; s

Nashua, New Hampshire

- duly 29,2005
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CURRENT YEAR RECOMMENDATIONS:

Improve Oversight Over Nursing Home Receivables (Reportable

Condition)

During our audit, we found that Nursing Home receivables were not in agree-
ment with, nor had not been reconciled to, the general ledger throughout the
year. This resulted from certain billings and adjustments that had not been
reported by the Nursing Home to the business office for recording to the gen-
eral ledger.

In addition, we found that receivables were not being reviewed for collect-
ibility during fiscal year 2005. As part of the annual audit, the Nursing Home
bookkeeper provided us with write-offs of receivables, fotaling approximately
$ 272,000, ieaving approximately $ 233,000 of receivables that are over one
year old.

We recommend that Nursing Home receivables be reconciled to the general
ledger on a monthly basis and that they be monitored during the year for
collectibility. We recommend that these procedures be overseen by some-
one other than the individuals performing these procedures. Further, we
recommend that uncollectible receivables be determined and approved by
someone outside the billing, collections, and general ledger functions and
that an allowance for uncollectible accounts be estimated and recorded at
least at year end.

The implemenfation of these procedures will improve controls over receiv-

ables and provide the Nursing Home with more reliable financial information
necessary to manage operations and cash flow.

Improve Year-End Processing Procedures

As part of its year-end closing process with the new general ledger software,
the County.rolled forward ali open purchase orders (encumbrances) by re-
cording an expenditure and an offsetting payable. However, because
encumbrances are not considered expenditures under Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles, this resulted in overstated expenditures. This was
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subsequently corrected by reversing the expenditures and reclassifying them
as a reserve for encumbrances.

Further, some of the items that were rolled forward as encumbrances were
actually payables for goods or services received or rendered as of June 30,
2005. No distinction between encumbrances and payables were made in
the list generated and rolied forward. The freatment of payables and
encumbrances for financial statements prepared under Generally Accepted
Accounting Principies is significantly different; payables are reported as
expenditures; encumbrances are reserves against fund balance.

We recommend that the County review its year-end processing procedures
s0 that payables and encumbrances are properly reported under Generally
Accepied Accounting Principles.

STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR RECOMMENDATIONS:

3.

improve Controls Over Various Cash Accounts {Reportable Condition)

Prior Year Comment

During the fiscal year 2004 audit, we noted that there were various cash
accounts which were not currently tracked in the County’s general ledger,
including a Registry checking account, a Sheriff's grant checking account,
various Nursing Home trust accounts, and a capital reserve account. The
previous year's audit management letter identified this situation as “a lack

of segregation of duties” because most of these accounts were administered
by elected officials and others, with no oversight from the Treasurer or
Administrative Office. As a result, there was an increased risk that errors or
irregularities could occur and go undetected.

We recommended that all County cash accounts be brought under the
control of the Treasurer, and that all related activity be reported in the
County’s general ledger. This would improve oversight, accountability,
and control over these accounts, thereby minimizing the risk of errors or
irregularities occurring.
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Current Year Status

The County is now including the capital reserve cash account in the general
ledger. The foliowing accounts, however, are stiil not included in the general
ledger, and are not under control of the County Treasurer:

» Registry Copy Account

« Nursing Home Resident Account

« Nursing Home Equipment Fund

« Nursing Home Alix Ungren Fund

« Nursing Home Elsie Hardison Fund
¢ Nursing Home Book Fund

o Nursing Home Activity Fund

» Nursing Home Resident Store Account
« Nursing Home Vending Account

« Nursing Home County Home Fund
» Cops Grant Account

» Sheriff's Department Account

s CDBG Project Account

« Alix Ungren Fund

Further Action Required

We continue to recommend that all County cash accounts be brought under
the control of the Treasurer, and that all related activity be reported in the
County’s general ledger.

Revise Various Accounting Procedures

In the prior year, we noted that although most critical information was in-
cluded in the County’s general ledger at year end, various accounting
practices followed either did not conform with generally accepted accounting

practices or resulted in inefficient practices. Our prior year observations and
~ recommendations follow:
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Prior Year Comment

A. Record Budgeted Transfers: Each year when the budget is authorized
and tax rate is set, the overall County budget balances, however, bud-
geted revenues do not match the budgetéd appropriately for individual
funds (e.g., the Nursing Home Enterprise Fund, the Registry Special
Revenue Fund, and the General Fund). The differences represent
budgeted surpius/deficits of the Registry/Nursing Home that impact
the General Fund’s tax rate. The County historically has not actually
moved money between funds to record these budgeted transfers. As
a result, the general ledger reflected large cumulative interfund bal-
ances due between funds.

We recommended that when the tax rate is set, budgeted surplus/
deficits for the Registry and Nursing Home be recorded as actual
transfers between funds. This would result in improved accountability
of each fund, and compliance with generally accepted accounting

principles.

Current Year Status

This recommendatidn has not been addressed.

Further Action Required

We recommend the County work with their outside consultants to establish
standard accounting entries to record transfers between funds in the general
iedger. '

Prior Year Comment

B. Avoid Posting Directly o Fund Balance Accounts: In the prior year, we
noted that transactions were posted directly to fund balance accounts,
and that a “prior year revenue” account was recorded in the revenue
report.. Generally accepted accounting principles do not permit such
transactions, which also complicéte the audit and MS-45 preparation
process.
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We recommended the County preciude from posting directly to fund
balance accounts and using “prior year revenue’ accounts. This would

simplify the accounting records.

Current Year Status
This comment has been resolved.

Further Action Required

None.

Prior Yc_ear Comment

C. Reconcile General Ledger to Appropriation Report: During the fiscal
year 2004 audit, we noted that the County used an appropriation re-
port to track and control activity for Fund 24 grants, and for the Capital
Improvements Fund. We also noted, however, that the ending bal-
ances in the appropriation reports did not correspond to the general
ledger at June 30, 2004. This could result in errors or inaccurate
information being used as a basis of control over these funds.

We recommended the general ledger fund balance in these funds
be reconciled with appropriation report balances on a monthly basis.
This would improve checks and balances to assure that both the
general ledger and appropriation reports reflect accurate balances.

Current Year Status

This comment has been resolvéd.

| Further Action Required

None.
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Prior Year Comment

D. Revise Mathod of Recording Budget Transfers: During fiscal 2004
the Commissioners authorized a transfer from several available appro-
priation balances to establish a capital reserve fund. To accomplish
this, we noted that instead of reducing the appropriations from the
funding sources (i.e., amending the budget), that actual expenditures
were charged to these accounts. This resulted in misleading budget
reports, and could complicate future budgets that rely on fiscal 2004
expenditures as a base.

We recommended that future budget transfers be recorded by
reducing the appropriation amount from the funding sources, and
increasing the appropriation amount for the proposed use. This
would result in more accurate expenditure reports.

Current Year Status

This issue has been resolved.

Further Action Reguired
None.

Prior Year Comment

E. Searegate Year-End Disbursements By Year: In the beginning of a
new fiscal year (July), the County processes bills related to both the
previous year and the new year. We noted that these disbursements
are combined in the vendor check runs processed in July. This com-
plicates the year-end cut-off process, as well as the audit.

We recommended July bills be segregated into separate check runs
by fiscal year. This would simplify the processing of year-end activity
and help assure a proper cut-off ocours.
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Current Year Status

This issue remains unchanged.

Further Action Required

We continue to recommend segregating check runs that relate fo different
fiscal years.

Prior Year Comment

F. Close Year-End Surplus/Deficit in Registry Fund: Because there is
no legal purpose to retain a separate fund balance in the Registry
Special Revenue Fund, we recommended that the year-end balance
(other than equipment reserves) be closed fo the General Fund. This
would result in more accurate amounts reported in the General Fund
general ledger. '

Current Year Status

This comment was not addressed as of June 30, 2005, however, we under_-
stand that beginning in fiscal year 2008, balances will be closed to the gen-
eral fund.

Further Action Required

We recommend that the County implement this recommendation in fiscal
year 2006. '

Prior Year Comment

G. Reconcile Miscellaneous [edger Balances: During fiscal year 2004,
we noted various general ledger accounts that reflected no current
year activity, and for which there was no support. We also noted
that various non-enterprise funds included general ledger balances
for capital assets and long-term debt. Generally accepted account-
ing principles do not permit long-term assets and liabilities to be
accounted for in such funds.

Page 76



We recommended that on a quarierly basis, all general iedger ac-
counts be reconciled to support, and all inactive accounts be evalu-
ated for closure. We also recommended that capital assets and
related debt no longer be recorded in the non-enterprise funds. This
would result in a more accurate general ledger.

Current Year Status

Capital assets and related debt were removed from non-enterprise funds
during fiscal year 2005. However, various general ledger balance sheet
accounts had balances that were carried from fiscal year 2004 (mostly
Nursing Home).

Further Action Required

We again recommend that on at least a quarterly basis, all general ledger

~ balance sheet accounts be reviewed and reconciled to support.

Void Printer Alighment Checks

Prior Year Comment

In the prior year, we noted that when checks were printed, there were a few
checks that were not issued at the beginning of the run because they were
used for the check printer alignment. We understand the County saved
these checks to be used as manual checks at a later date. As a result, the
check sequence of checks clearing the bank was not always chronological.
This resulted in a poor audit trail, and complicated the cash reconciliation
process.

We recommended the County void all unused “printer alignment” checks
immediately. This would provide an improved audit trail and simplify the
bank reconciliation process.
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Current Year Status

During fiscal year 2005 the County implemented a new general ledger
accounting system. This new system does not require printer alignment
checks. As a result, check sequences are now chronological.

Further Action Required

None.

Maintain Log of Checks Used

Prior Year Comment

In the prior year, we noted that the County did not maintain a log of issued
or voided checks. The purpose of such a log is to maintain the sequential
integrity of checks used. A log which lists all checks issued and voided
provides additional assurance that all checks are accounted for and reduces
the risk that checks will be used inappropriately without being detected.

We recommended the County establish a log to track all checks issued and
voided. This would provide additional control over cash disbursements.

Current Year Status

During the current year audit, we noted that the County maintained a log of
all checks.

Further Action Required

None.
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Improve Year-End Reporting at the Nursing Home

Prior Year Comment

As part of our fiscal year 2004 audit of the Nursing Home Enterprise Fund, it

was necessary to make the following adjustments:

s Write-off bad debts identified by the Nursing Home.

» Adjust resident cash, and the offsetting liability to residents, to the
correct balance at June 30, 2004.

« Adjust restricted cash to reconciled balances.

» Adjust inventory to agree with physical count.

» Adjust payroll accruals.

-« Adjust accounts payable.

» Reverse billings for July 2004, posted to FY 2004.

» Reclassify expenses to fixed assets and record depreciation.
As a result of the above adjustments, the Nursing Home's fiscal year 2004
audited financial statements were significantly different than their internal
year-end financial reports.
We recommended that in the future, these adjustments be made part' of
the Nursing Home’s year-end closing entries, rather than being left to the
annual audit. Also, adjustments such as bad debt write-offs should be made
throughout the year and all balance sheet accounts should be regularly re-

viewed, and adjustments made, as needed. This would provide the Nursing
Home with more accurate financial information in a timely manner.
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Current Year Status

The adjustments noted above that were made during fiscal year 2004 were
repeated during the fiscal year 2005 audit.

Further Action Required

We continue to recommend that the Nursing Home address the issues noted
above so that accurate financial information is provided to the County in a
timely manner.

Improve Segregation of Duties Over Inmate Account

Prior Year Comment

In the prior year, we noted that the County Correctional Facility maintained a
checking account on behalf of inmates to be used for personal foiletries, efc.
We noted that the secretary at the facility, who was also responsible for re-
cording all activity and reconciling the account, was an authorized check
signer. This resulted in a lack of segregation of duties.

We recommended that the secretary be removed as an authorized check
signer, and that copies of bank statements and reconciliations be provided
to the Treasurer on a monthly basis. This would improve oversight and
controls, thereby reducing the risk of errors or irregularities occurring and
going undetected.

Current Year Status

We understand that the secretary at the County Correctional Facility is no
longer an authorized check signer. -

Further Action Reguired

None,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Commissioners

- ~- Sullivan County

Newport, New Hampshire

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activi
ties, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining

fund information of Sullivan County, New Hampshire, as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2005, which colledively comprise the County’s basic financial statements
as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of
Sullivan County’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements basedon our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America. Those standards require that we'plan and perform

. the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statemats

are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant esti
mates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all mate
rial respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund infor
mation of Sullivan County, as of June 30, 2005, and the respective changes in
financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof and the respective
budgetary comparison for the General Fund for the year then ended in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

The management’s discussion andraralysis, appearing on the following pages, is

not a required part of thebasic financial statements but is supplementary informa

tion required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board We have applied
certain limited procedures, which consisted prinagpally of inquiries of management
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regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supple
mentary information. However, we did not audit the information and express no
opinion on it.

Nashua, New Hampshire
July 29, 2005
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As management of Sullivan County, we offer readers this narrative overview and
analysis of the financial activities of Sullivan County for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2005.

A. OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the basic
financial statements. The basic financial statements are comprised of three
components: (1) government-wide financial statements, (2)fund financial state-

- ments, and (3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains
other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements
themselves.

Government-wide financial statements. The governmentwide financial state-
ments are designed to provide eaders with a broad overview of our finances in
a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net assets presents information on all assets and liabilities, with
the difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increase or
decreases in net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial
position is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the County's net
assets changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets
are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs,
regardiess of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses
are reported in this statement for some items that will only result incash flows
in future fiscal periods (e.g., earmed but unused vacation leave).

Both of the governmentwide financial statements distinguish functions that are
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental
activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant
portion of their costs through user fees and charges (businesstype activities).
The governmental activities include General Government, County Attorney’s
Office, Commissioners Office, PublicSafety, Corrections, Health and Welfare,
Cooperative Extension and Register of Deeds. The businesstype activities
include Nursing Home activities.

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is
used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific
activities or objectives. Fund accounting is used to ensure and demonstrate -
compliance with finance-related legal requirements, All of the funds can be
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divided into three categories: governmental fund, proprietary funds and
fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially
the same functions reported as governmental activities in the governmerdwide
financial statements. However, unlike the governmentwide financial statements,
governmental fund financial statements focus on neafterm inflows and outflows
of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources avail
able at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluatig

a government’s nearterm financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government
wide financial statements, it is usefut to compare the information presented for

-~ governmental funds with similar informatbn presented for governmental activities
in the governmentwide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better
understand the long-ferm impact of the County’s nearterm financing decisions.
Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement
of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation
to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and govemmental
aclivities.

An annual appropriated budget is adopted for the general fund. A bdgetary
comparison statement has been provided for the general fund o demonstrate
compliance with this budget.

Proprietary funds. Proprietary funds are maintained as foliows:

Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as busines-
type activities in the governmentwide financial statements. Specifically, enter
prise funds are used to account for nursing home operations.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the businesstype
activities reported in the government-wide financial statements, only in more
detail. The proprietary fund financial staiements provide separate information
for the nursing home operations, which is considered to be a major fund.

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to accountfor resources held for
the benefit of parties outside the government. Fiduciary funds are noteflected
in the governmentwide financial statements because the resources of those
funds are not available to support the County’s own programs. The accountig
used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds.

Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information
that are essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the government
wide and fund financid statements.
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Other information. [n addition to the basic financial statements and accom

panying notes, this report also presents certain required supplementary infor
mation which is required to be disclosed by theGovernmental Accounting
Standards Board.

. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

As of the close of the current fiscal year, the total of assets exceeded liabii
ties by $ 8,031,645 (i.e., net assets), an increase of $798,651 in comparison
to the prior year.

As of the close of the current fiséal year,governmental funds reported com
bined ending fund balances of $1,706,112, an increase of $1,046,958 in
comparison with the prior year, as restated.

At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance for the general
fund was $ 703,010, an increase of $ 341,851 in comparison with the prior
year.

Total long-term debt (i.e., bonds payable) at the close of the current fiscal
year was $ 560,910, a decrease of $(556,559) in comparison to the prior
year. ‘

. GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

The following is a summary of condensed governmentwide financial data for the
current and prior fiscal years. All amounts are presented in thousands.

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activilies Total
005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004

Current and other assets $2126 §$2433 $1,783 $1,869 $ 3809 §$ 4,302
Capital assets -2.674 2,803 4,017 4,176 6.691 8.979
Total assets ' ' 4,800 5,236 5,800 6,045 10,600 11,281
Long-term liabilities outstanding 186 277 224 720 410 997
Other liabilities 527 1.8%1 1.831 1.160 2,158 3,051
Total liabilities 713 2,168 1,855 1,880 2,568 4,048
Net assets: |
Invested in capital assets, net 2,489 2,515 3,526 3,199 6,015 5,714
Unrestricted 1.598 553 419 266 2,017 1,519
“Total net assets $4,087 $3.068 $3.945 $4,465 $_8032 $_7,233
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CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Governmsntal Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
2005 2004 005 2004 2005 2004
Revenues:
Charges for services $ 944 $ 952 § 9194 §$ 9,730 $10,138 $10,682
Operating grants - 736 696 60 60 796 756
County tax 9,433 9,337 - - - 9433 9,337
Investment income 68 21 - - 68 21
Other 268 39 - - 268 39
Total revenues 11,449 11,045 9,254 9,790 20,703 20,835
Expenses:
General government 664 718 - - 664 718
‘County Attorney 322 234 - - 322 234
Commissioners office 247 221 - - 247 221
Public safety 809 781 - - 809 781
Corrections 2,243 2,310 - - 2,243 2,310
County Nursing Home - 65 11,176 10,341 11,176 10,406
Heaith and welfare 3,852 4,457 - - 3,852 4,457
Cooperative extension 260 290 - - 260 290
Register of Deeds ' 331 345 - - 331 345
Total expenses 8.728 9421 11176 10,341 12,804 19,762
Change in net assets before |
fransfers 2,721 1,624 (1,922) ( 551) 799 1,073
Transfers in (ouf) (1.702) (1,491) 1,702 1.491 - -
Increase (decrease) in
net assets 1,019 133 ( 220) 940 799 1,073
Net assets - beginning of year 3.068 2,935 4,185 3,225 7.233 6,160
Net assets - end of year $_4087 $_3068 $_3945 $_4,465 $_8,032 §_7.233

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a

govermnment’s financial position. At theclose of the most recent fiscal year, total
net assets were $ 8,031,645, an increase of $798,651 from the prior year, as

restated.

The largest portion of net assets $6,015,163 reflects our investment in capital
assets (e.g., land, buildings, machineryand equipment), less any related debt
used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. These capital assets are
used to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available
for future spending. Although the investment in capial assets is reported net

of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt

must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves

cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities,

The remaining balance ofunrestricted net assets $2,016,482 rﬁay be used to
meet the government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.
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Governmental activities. Governmental activities for the year resulted in an
increase in net assets of $1,018,788. Key elements of his increase are as
follows:

Governmental
| Activities

Excess of general fund revenues over budget $ 280,161

Budgetary appropriations unspent by departments 461,690
Use of fund balance as a funding source ( 400,000)

Current encumbrances in excess of prior year

encumbrances (timing difference) 728,865
Other (__51.9828)

" Total $1.018,788

Business-type activities. Business-type activities (Nursing Home) for the year
resulted in a decrease in net assets of $(220,137). Most of this decrease is
attributed to the repayment of Proshare funds.

. FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE GOVERNM-ENT’S FUNDS

As noted earlier, fund accounting is used to ensure and demonstrate compdi
ance with finance-related legal requirements,

Governmental funds. The focus of governmental funds is to provide infor
mation on nearterm inflows, outflows and balances of spendable resources.
Such information is useful in assessing financing requirements. |n particular,
unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measue of a government's
net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, governmental funds reported com
bined ending fund balances of $1,706,112, an increase of $1,046,958

in comparison with the prior year. Key elements of this increase are as
follows: .

Govemmental
Funds
Excess of general fund revenues over budget $ 280,161
Budgetary appropriations unspent by departments 461,690
Use of fund balance as a funding source _ ( 400,000)
Current encumbrances in excess of prior year
encumbrances (timing difference) 728,865
Other = ‘ ' - (__23.758)
Total ' $ 1.046,958
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The general fund is the chief operating fund. At the end of the current fiscal
year, unreserved fund balance of the gereral fund was $703,010. As a
measure of the general fund’s liquidity, it may be useful o compare unreserved
fund balance to total fund expenditures. Unreserved fund balance at June 30,
2005 represents 9 percent of total general fund expenditures.

The fund balance of the general fund increased by $1,070,716 during the
current fiscal year. Key factors in this change are as follows:

General
Fund
Excess of general fund revenues over budget $ 280,161
. Budgetary appropriations unspent by departments 461,690
Use of fund balance as a funding source ( 400,000)
Current encumbrances in excess of prior year
Encumbrances (timing difference) 728,865

Total $1.070,716

Proprietary funds. Proprietary funds provide the same type of information
found in the businesstype activities reported in the governmentwide finan-
cial statements, but in more detail.

Unrestricted net assets of the enterprise funds at the end of the year amounted
to $ 418,508, a decrease of $(547,515) in comparison with the prior year.
Other factors concerning the finances of proprietary funds have already been
addressed in the entitywide discussion of businesstype activities.

. CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital assets. Total investment in capital assetsfor governmental and business
type activities at year end amounted to $6,690,164 (net of accumulated depre
ciation), a decrease of $(289,021) from the prior year. This investment in capital
assets includes land, buildings and improvements, and machineryand equipment.

Long-term debt. Af the end of the current fiscal year, total bonded debt out
standing was $ 560,910, all of which was backed by the {ull faith and credit
of the government.

Additional information on capital assets and longterm debt can be found in
the footnotes to the financial statements.
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REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the County’s
finances for all those with an interest in the government’s finances. Questions
concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional
financial information should be addressed to:

Board of Commissioners
Sullivan County
14 Main Street
Newport, New Hampshire 03773
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Governmental
Activities
ASSETS
Current:
Cash and short-term investments $ 2,122,296
Receivables:
. -,Degartmental and other 2,000
Intergovernmental 175
Internal balances (139,854)
Prepaid expenses 142,058
Inventory -
Noncurrent:
Restricted cash -
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 2,673,655
TOTAL ASSETS 4,800,330
LIABILITIES
Current:
Accounts payable 163,854
Accrued liabilities 256,709
Due to residents -
Current portion of long-term liabilities:
Bonds payable 70,473
Capital [eases payable 35,949
Noncurrent: _
Capital leases payable, net of current portion 78,142
Accrued compensated absences 108,138
TOTAL LIABILITIES 713,265
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 2,489,091
Unrestricted 1,697,874
TOTAL NET ASSETS $ 4,087,065

See notes fo financial statements.

SULLIVAN COUNTY, NEW HAMPSHIRE

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

JUNE 30, 2005

10

Business-Type

Activit

$ 200
1,518,254

1 39,8-54
22,(;7'1

102,715

4,016,509

5,799,903

707,040
341,668
91,068

490,437

224,210

1,855,323

3,526,072

418,508

$ 3,944,580

$ 2,122,496

1,520,254
175

142,058
22,371

102,715
6,690,164

10,600,233

870,894
598,377
91,968

560,910
35,049

78,142
' 332,348

2,568,588
6,015,163
2,016,482

$ 8,031,645
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SULLIVAN COUNTY, NEW HAMPSHIRE
RECONCILIATION OF TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUND
BALANCES TO NET ASSETS OF GOVERNMENTAL
ACTIVITIES IN THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

JUNE 30, 2005

Total governmental fund balances $1,706,112

« Capital assets used in governmental activities are not

financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in
the funds. 2,673,655

« long-term liabilities, including bonds payabie, capital
leases payable, and accrued compensated absences,
are not due and payabile in the current period and,

therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds. (_292,702)
Net assets of governmental activities $ 4,087,065

_See_ notes to financial statements.
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SULLIVAN COUNTY, NEW HAMPSHIRE

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2005

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES - TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS  § 1,046,958

- o~ Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.
However, in the Statement of Activities the cost of those assets is
allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as
depreciation expense:

Capital purchases 145,181
_ Depreciation ( 274,667)

¢ The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds and leases) pro-
vides current financial resources to governmental funds, while
the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the
financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction,
however, has any effect on net assets:

Repayments of debt 103,665

s [n the statement of activifies, interest is accrued on outstanding
long-term debt, whereas in governmental funds interest is not
reported until due. 8,062

« Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities, such as
compensated absences, do not require the use of current financial:
resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in the

governmental funds. : (__10.411)
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES $1,018,788

See notes to financial statements.
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SULLIVAN COUNTY, NEW HAMPSHIRE
PROPRIETARY FUND
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2005

ASSETS

Current;
Cash and short-term investments

- ~Accounts receivable, net of contractual allowances

Internal balances
Inventory

Total current assets

Nengcurrent:
Restricted cash
Capital assets, net
of accumulated depreciation

Total noncurrent assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Current:
- Accounts payable
Accrued and other liabilities
Due to residents
Current portion of long-term liabilities:
Bonds payable

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent;
Compensated absences

Total noncurrent liabitities
TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET ASSETS

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Unrestricted
TOTAL NET ASSETS

See notes to financial statements.

17

Business-Type Aclivities
Enterprise Fund

Nursing
Home

$ 200
1,518,254
139,854
22,371

1,680,679

102,715
4,016,509
4,119,224
5,799,803

707,040
341,668
91,968

490,437 .
1,631,113

224,210
224,210
1,855,323

3,526,072
418,508

$ 3,844,580
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SULLIVAN COUNTY, NEW HAMPSHIRE

PROPRIETARY FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2005

Operating Revenues:
Charges for services
Miscelianeous

Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses:
Personnel services
Contractual services
Therapy services
Supplies and office expense
Medical expenses
Utilities
Depreciation
Payroll and other taxes
Food
Repairs and maintenance
Employee benefits
Telephone
Miscellaneous
Insurance
Medicine

Total Operating Expenses

OCperating Income {Loss)

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):

Intergovernmental revenue
Interest expense

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses), Net

Income {Loss) Before Transfers

Transfers:
Operating fransfers in

_Change in Net Assets _
Nef Assets at Beginning of Year
Net Assets at End of Year

See notes to financial statements.

18

Business-Type Activities
Enterprise Fund

Nursing
Home

$ 0,154,165
39,707

9,193,872

5,843,892
1,029,903
232,183
203,922 .
75,814
321,177
332,615
433,617
439,512
41,633
1,851,480
17,947
648
49,437
180,046

11,153,726
(1,959,854)

60,174
(22,056)

38,118

(1,821,7386)

1,701,589
(220,137)
4,164,717

$ 3,944,580
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SULLIVAN COUNTY, NEW HAMPSHIRE
PROPRIETARY FUND
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2005

Business-Type Activities
Enterprise Funds

Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) fo nst
cash provided by (used for) operating activities:

Nursing
Home
Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Receipts for services provided $ 8,681,404
Miscellaneous receipts 39,707
- ~Payments for personnel and related costs (7,606,049)
Payments for goods and services {2,665,018)
Net Cash Provided By (Used For) Operating Activities {1,549,866)
Cash Flows From Noncapital Financing Activities:
Operating transfers in 1,701,599
Reoceipts from intemnal balances 470,142
Intergovernmental grant 60,174
Net Cash (Used For) Noncapital Financing Activities 2,231,915
Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities: ‘
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (173,080)
Principal payments on bonds (486,913)
Interest expense (22,056)
Net Cash (Used For) Capital and Related Financing Activities (682,049)
Net Change in Cash and Short-Term Investments -
Cash and Short Term Investments, Beginning:of Year 200
Cash and Short Term Investments, End of Year $ 200
onciliation of Operating | m Cas
ovided by (Used For rati ivities :

$ (1,959,854)

Depreciation 332,615
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable (472,671)
Inventory 10,298
Other assets 12,098
--Accounts payable 348,243
Accrued and other liabilities . 179,405

Net Cash Provided By (Used For} Operating Activities

See notes to financial statements.

18

$ (1,549,866)
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SULLIVAN COUNTY, NEW HAMPSHIRE
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

JUNE 30, 2005

Agency
. Funds
~ ASSETS
Cash and shoriterm investments $ 13,933
Total Assets 13,933
LIABILITI ETS
Other liabilities ' 13,933
Total Liabilities 13,833
NET ASSETS $ -

See notes to financial statements.
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SULLIVAN COUNTY, NEW HAMPSHIRE

Notes to Financial Statements

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting policies of Sullivan County, New Hampshire (the County)
conform to generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applicable
to governmental units. The following is a summary of the more significant
policies:

A. Reporting Entity

The govemment is a municipal corporation governed by an elected Board
of Commissioners. As required by generally accepted accounting priR
ciples, these financial statements present the government and applicable
component units for which the government is consideed to be financially
accountable,

B. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The governmentwide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net
assets and the statement of changes in net assets) report infomation
on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government. For the
most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these
statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by
taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from
business-type activities, which rely 1o a significant extent on fees and
charges for support.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct
expenses of a given function or segment are offset ly program revenues.
Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific fune
fion or segment. Program revenues include (1)charges to customers

- or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services,
or privileges provided by a given function or segment and (2)grants and
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular function of segment. Taxes and other items
not properly included among program revenues are repried instead as
general revenues.

Fund Financial Statements .

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds,
proprietary funds and fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded
from the governmentwide financial statements. Majo individual govern-
mental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reporied as
separate columns in the fund financial statements.
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C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement
Presentation

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are reported using theecon-
omic resources measurement focusand the accrual basis of accounting,
as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial statements. Reve
nues are recorded when earned and expense are recorded when a
liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Grants
and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility
requirements imposed by the provider have been met. As a general rule,
the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government
wide financial statements.

Amounts reported as program revenues include (1) charges to customers
or applicants for goods, services, or privileges provided, (2)operating
grants and contributions and (3) capital grants and contributions, inciud
ing special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are reported as
general revenuesrather than as program revenues. Likewise, general
revenues include all taxes.

Fund Financial Statements

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using thecurrent
financial resources measurement focusand the modified accrual basis of
accounting. Revenues are recoghized as socn as they are both measur
able and availabie. Revenues are considered to be awailable when they
are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay
liabilities of the current period. Generally, all other revenue items are
considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received
by the government. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability

is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expendi

tures, as well as expendifures related to compensated absences and
claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.

The government reports the following major governmental funds:

o The general fund is the government's primary operating fund.
It accounts for all financial resources of the general government,
except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

o Register of Deeds consists of the Special Revenue Fund which is
used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources and
related expenditures that are associated with registry activities.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenss from non-
operating items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from
-providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with
a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating
revenues of the enterpise fund are charges to customers for sales and

services. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales
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and services, administrative expenses and depreciation on capital assets.
All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition ae reported as non
operating revenues and expenses. ! ’

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior
fo December 1, 1989 generally are followed in both the governmeniwide
and proprietary fund financial statements to the extentthat those standards
do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board. Governments also have the option of following subse
quent private-sector guidance for their businesstype aclivities and enter
prise funds, subject 1o this same limitation. The government has elected
not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance.

The government reports the County Nursing Home as a major proprietary
fund.

D. Cash and Short-Term Investmenis

Cash balances from all funds, except those required to be segregated

by law, are combined to form a consolidation of cash. Cash balances
are invested {o the extent available, and interest earnings are recognized
in the General Fund. Certain special revenue, proprietary, and fiduciary
funds segregate cash, and investment earnings become a part of those
funds.

Deposits with financial institutions consist primarily of demand deposits,
certificates of deposits, and savings accounts. A cash and investment
pool is maintained that is avaikhble for use by all funds. Each fund’s
pottion of this pool is reflected on the combined financial statements
under the caption “cash and shortterm investments”. The interest
eamings attributable to each fund type is included under investment
income. :

For purpose of the statement of cash fiows, the proprietary funds cor
sider investments with original maturities of three months or less to be
short-term investments. :

E. Investmenis

State and local statutes place certain limitations on the nature of deosits
and investments available. Deposits in any financial institution may not
exceed certain levels within the financial institution. Nonrfiduciary fund
investments can be made in securities issued by or unconditionally
guaranteed by the U.S. Governmert or agencies that have a maturity of

~one year or less from the date of purchase and repurchase agreements
guaranteed by such securities with maturity dates of no more than 90
days from the date of purchase.

F. Interfund Receivables and Payables
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Transactions between funds that are representative of lending/ borrowing
arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to

as either “due fromfto other funds” (i.e., the current portion of interfund
loans).

. Inventories

inventories are valued at cost using the firstin/first-out (FIFO) method.
The costs of governmental fundtype inventories are recorded as expendt
tures when purchased rather than when consumed. No significant invenr
tory balances were on hand in governmental funds.

. Capital Assefts

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infra
structure assets (for enterprise funds only) are reported in the applicable
governmental or businesstype activities columns in the governmentwide
financial statements. Carpital assets are defined by the government as
assets with an initial individual cost of more than $200 and an estimated
useful life in excess of two years. Such assets are recorded at historical
cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructel. Donated
capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of
donation.

 The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value
of the asset or materially extend assets lives are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvementis are capitalized as
projects are constructed. Interest incurred during the construction phase
of capital assets of businesstype activities is included as part of the
capitalized value of the assets constructed.

Property, plant and equipment of the primary government is depreciated
using the straightline method over the following estimated useful lives:

Assets Years

Buildings 40

Building improvements 20

Vehicles 5

Office equipment 5

Computer equipment 5
Compensated Absences

[t is the government’s policy fo permit employees to accumulate eamed
- but unused vacation and sick pay benefits. All vested sick and vacation
pay is accrued when incurred in the governmentwide, proprietary and
fiduciary fund financial statemerts. A liability for these amounts is
reported in governmental funds only if they have matured, for example,
as a result of employee resignations and retirements.
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J. Long-Term Obligations

In the governmentwide financial statements, and proprietary fundtypes in
the fund financial statements, iongterm debt and other lengterm obiiga-
tions are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental acfivities,
business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net assets.

K. Fund Equity

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report reservations
of fund balance for amounts that are not available for appropriation or are
legally restricted by outside parties for use for a specific purpose. Desig
nations of fund balance represert tentative management plans that are
subject to change.

L. Use of Estimates

The preparation of basic financial statements in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the eported amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosures for contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the basic
financial statements, and the reported amounts of the revenues

and expenditures/expenses during the fiscal year. Actual results could
vary from estimates that were used.

2. Stewardship, Compliance and Accountability

A. Budagetary Information

The County follows the following procedures establishing the budgetary
data reflected in the basic financial statements:

e Prior to May 1%, the County departments submit to the County
Commissioners a proposed budget for the fiscal year commencing
the following July 1. The budget includes proposed expenditures
and the means of financing them.

s Hearings are conducted by the County Commissioners prorto
the County’s budget meeting to discuss the proposed budget.

e The budget is legally enacted by the County Delegation prior to
September 1%,

» Appropriations for certain projects and specific items not fully
expended at the fiscal yearend are carried forward as continued
appropriations o the new fiscal year in which they supplement the
appropriations of that year.

e The budgets for all departments and operations of the County
are prepared under the direction of the County Commissioners.
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Original appropriations are acied upon by the County Delegation
vote.

o A copy of the budget is published in the Annual Report of Sullivan
County, New Hampshire.

B. Budgetary Basis

The General Fund final appropriation appearing on the “Budget and
Actual” page of the fund financial statements represents the final
amended budget after all reserve fund transfers and supplemental
appropriafions.

C. Budget/GAAP Reconciliation

The budgetary data for the general fund is based upon accounting prin
ciples that differ from generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP).
Therefore, in addition to the GAAP basis financial statements, the results
of operations of the general fund are presented in accordance with
budgetary.accounting principies io provide a meaningful comparison ith
budgetary data. _

The following is a summary of adjustments made to the actual revenues
and other sources, and expenditures and other uses, to conform to the
budgetary basis of accounting.

Revenues Expenditures
and Other and Other
General Fund Financing Sources Financing Uses
Revenues/Expenditures
(GAAP basis) $ 10,205,263 $ 7,745,065
Other financing sources/uses
(GAAP basis) 275.387 1,664,869
Subtotal (GAAP Basis) 10,480,650 9,409,934
Record use of fund balance 400,000 -
Record current year appropria
tion carryforwards - 728,865
Budgetary basis ' $ 10,880,650 $ 10,138,799
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D. Deficit Fund Equity
The following funds had deficits as of June 30, 2005:

Domestic Viclence Grant $( 90)
Drug Task Force (2.814)
Total $ (2.904)

The deficits in these funds will be eliminated through future departmental
revenues, and transfers from other funds.

Cash and Short-Term Investments

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits. Custodial credit risk is the risk that in

the event of a bank failure, the County’s deposits may not be returmned to it
RSA 48:16 limits “deposit in any one bank shall not at any time exceed the
sum of its paid-up capital and surplus. The County does not have a deosit
policy for custodial credit risk.

As of June 30, 2005, $1,374,239 of the County’s bank balance of

$ 3,548,638 was exposed to custodial credit risk as uninsured, uncollateral
ized, and collateral held by pledging bank’s trust department not in the
County's name.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The Nursing Home has elected to record bad debts using the direct writeoff
method. Generally accepted accounting principles reguire that the allowance
method be used to reflect bad debts. Managementhas reviewed receivables
at June 30, 2005 and has determined that no allowance is hecessary.

Intergovernmental Receivables

This balance represents reimbursements requested from Federal and State
agencies for expenditures incurred in fiscal 2005.

interfund Fund Receivables/Payables

Although selfbalancing funds are maintained, most transactions flow through
the general fund. In orderto obtain accountability for each fund, interfund
receivable and payable accounts must be utilized. The folbbwing is an
analysis of the June 30, 2005 balancesin interfund receivable and payable
accounts:

Due From Due To
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Fund
General Fund

Special Revenue Funds:
Registry of Deeds
Grants

Enterprise Funds:
Nursing Home

Total

.. 7. Capital Assets

Other Funds Other Funds
$ - $ 335,435
- 3,323
108,904 -
139,854
$ 338,758 $ 338,758

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2005 was as follows (in

thousands):

Governmental Activities:

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements
Equipment and vehicles
Land improvements

Total capital assets, being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements
Equipment and vehicles
L.and improvements

Total accumulated depreciation

Governmental activities capital assets, net

Business-Type Activiiies:

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements
Equipment
Vehicles

Total capital assets, being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buiidings and improvements
Equipment

. Vehicles

Total accumulated depreciation

Business-type activities capital assets, net

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
$4,285 $101 $ - $ 4,386

885 44 - 829
312 - - 312.
5,482 145 - 5,627
(1,855) {151) - (2,006)

( 691) ( 62) - ( 753)
(_133) (_62) - (_195)
(2.679) (275) - (2.854)
$2.803 $ (130) $_- $2673

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
$7.616 $ 18 $ - $ 7,634

1,752 113 - 1,865
107 42 - 149
9,475 173 - 9,648
(3,616) (261) - {3,877)
(1,575) ( 66) - (1.641)
(_108) __9) - (113)
(5.299) @32) - (5.631)
$4.176 $ (159) $ - $4,017
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10.

Depreciation expense was charged to functions of the County as foliows (in
thousands):

Governmental Aclivities:

General government $ 73

Public safety 79

Public welfare 2

Department of Corrections 118

Cooperative extension _ 3
Total depreciation expense- governmental activities $ 275
Business-Type Activities:

Nursing Home $ 332
Total depreciation expense- business-type activities $ 332

Accounts Payable

Accounts payable represent additional 2005 expenditures paid after June 30,
2005.

Anticipation Notes Payable

The following summarizes activity in notes payable during fiscal year 2005:

Balance Balance
Beginning New End of
of Year Issues Maturities Year
Revenue anticipation $ - $2.750.000 $2750,000 % -

Long-Term Debt

A. General Obligation Bonds

The County issues general obligation bonds to provide funds for the
acquisition and construction of major capital faciiities. General obliga
tion bonds have been issued for both governmental and businesstype
activities. General obligation bonds currently outstanding are as follows:

Amount
Serial Outstanding
. Maturities Interest as of
Governmental Activities: Through Rate(s)% June 30, 2005

Sewer Project (19%) ‘ 04/01/08  1.1875% $ 70,473
Total Governmental Activities: $70.473
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Amount

Serial Outstanding
Maturities Interest as of
Business-Type Activities: Through Rate(s)% June 30, 2005
Sewer Project (81%) 04/01/08 1.1875% $ 300,437
Capital Improvements 08/15/05 5.483% 190,000
Total Business-Type Activities: $ 490,437

B. Future Debt Service

The annual principal payments fo retire all general obligationlong-term
debt outstanding as of June 30, 2005 are as follows:

Governmental Principal
2006 $_70.473
Total $_70,473
Business-Type Principal
2006 $ 490,437
Total $ 490,437

C. Changes in General Long-Term Liabilities

interest Total
$_837 $_71.310
$_837 $_70.473
inferest Total
$ 8.556 $ 408,993
$ 8,556 $ 496,993

During the year ended June 30, 2005, the following changes occurred in
long-term liabilities (in thousands):

Equals
Total Total Less Long-Term
Balance Balance  Current  Portion
7/1/04 Additions Reductions  6/30/05 Portion  6/30/05
Governmental Activities
Bonds payable $ 140 $ - $( 70) $ 70 $(70) 5 -
Other:
Capital leases 148 - { 34) 114 ( 36) 78
Acctued employee benefits o8 10 - 108 - 108
Totals $_386 $_10 $ (104) 5292 $ (106) $ 186
Business-Type Activities _
Bonds payable $ 978 $ - $ (488) $ 490 $ (490) $ -
Other:
Accrued employee benefits 229 - {(_5) - 224 - 224
Totals - $_-_ § (493) §714 $ (490 $224

$1.207

i1. Capital Lease Obligations

The County is the lessee of certain equipment under capital leases expiring
in various years through 2008. Future minimum lease payments under the
capital leases consisted of the following as of June 30, 2005:

30
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12.

13.

14.

2006 $ 42,431

2007 42,431

2008 42,431
Total minimum lease payments 127,293
Less amount representing interest (_13,202)
Present Value of Minimum Lease Payments $ 114,091

Restricted Net Assets

The accompanying entitycwidé financial statements report restricted net
assets when external constraints from grantors or contributors are placed
onh net assets.

Permanent fund restricted net assetsare segregated between nonexpend
able and expendabie. The nonexpendable portion represents the original
restricted principal contribution, and the expendable represents accumulated
eamings which are available to be spent based on donor restrictions.

Reserves of Fund Equity

“Reserves” of fund equity are established 1o segregate fund balances which
are either not available for expenditure in the future or are legally set aside
for a specific future use,

Reserved for Encumbrances- An account used to segregate that portion of
fund balance committed for expenditure of financial resources upon vendor
performance,

Commitments and Continqencies

Outstanding Lawsuits - There are several pending lawsuits in which the
County is involved. The Courty's management is of the opinion that the
potential future settlement of such claims would not materially affect its
financial statements taken as a whole. :

Grants - Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to
audit and adjustmentby grantor agencies, principally the federal government.
Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected, may constitute

a liability of the applicable funds. The amount of expenditures which may be
disaliowed by the grantor cannot be determired at this time, although the
County expects such amounts, if any, fo be immaterial.
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15.

16.

Pension Plan

The County foliows the provisions of GASB Statement No. 27 Accounting
for Pensions for State and Local Government Employees,with respect to the
employees’ retirement funds.

A. Plan Description

The County coniributes to the New Hampshire Retirement System
(NHRS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer contributory defined benefit
pension plan. NHRS provides service, disability and death, and vested
retirement benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. NHRS is
administered by a 13-member Board of Trustees. The Board of Trusiees
formulates administrative policies and procedures and authorizes bene
fit payments to members and their beneficiaries. The NHRS issues a
pubiicly available financial report that includes financial statements and
required supplementary information. That report may be obtained by
writing to the New Hampshire Retirement System, 4 Chenell Drive,
Concord, NH 03301-8509 or by caling (603) 271-3351.

B. Funding Policy

Sheriff's deputies and correctional office plan members and all other
employee plan members are required o contribute 9.3% and 5%,
respectively, of their annual covered salary and the County is required to
contribute at an actuarially determined rate. The current rate for sheriff's
deputies and correctional officers is 7.87% of annual covered payroll. The
current rate for all other employees is 5.90% of annual covered payroll.
The contribution requirements of plan members are fixed by statute. The
County’s contributions to NHRS for the years ended June 30, 2005, 2004,
2003 were $ 387,562, $225,751, and $220,186, respectively, equal to
the required contributions for each year.

Self Insurance

The County participates in the New Hampshire Municipal Association Health
Insurance Trust SeltFunding Plus Program (Program) which provides medi
cal health benefits to its eligible employees and their eligibie dependents.
The Program is self-funded and amounts collected from premiums, net of
claims paid on behalf of participants, are maintained in a separate cash
account and are reflected on the balance sheet as general fund “restricted
cash”. Claims relating to the year ended June 30, 2005, which have not been
paid, have been recorded as a liability as of June 30, 2005. The County is

-insured above a stop-loss amount of approximately $ 75,000 on individual

and aggregate claims as of June 30, 2005.
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17.

Workers Compensation

The County contracts with an insurance consutant for claims processing

of the County’'s workers compensation policy, which has no excess liabiiity
coverage for any employees. The Workers Compensation claims liability
represents an estimate of future costs based on a historical analysis of similar
claims for all employees excluding public safety. The County is unable 1o
make any reasonable estimate of its liability for public safety employees.

Risk Management

The County is exposed to various risks of loss related to theft of, damage to,
and destruction of assets; efrors and omissions; injuries to employees; and
natural disasters. The County and other municipalities and other qualified
political subdivisions of New Hampshire are members of the Public Risk .
Management Exchange (Primex’), a Trust organized to provide property -
and liability insurance coverage fo its members. The County pays an annual
premium to Primex’ for its propetty and liability insurance coverage. The
premium paid in 2005 was $94,051.

The coverage includes a retrospective contribution endorsement under which
the County may receive a portion of its premiums back based on a loss ratio
as defined in the agreement.
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